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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SAUDI ORIX LEASING COMPANY

Scope of Audit

We have audited the accompanying interim balance sheet of Saudi ORIX Leasing Company,
a Closed Saudi Joint Stock Company (the "Company") as of 30 June 2012 and the related
interim statements of income, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the six-
month period then ended . These interim financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management and submitted to us together with all the information and
explanations which we required. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
interim financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable degree of
assurance to enable us to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Ungualified Opinion

In our opinion, the interim financial statements taken as a whole present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 30 June 2012 and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the six-month period then ended in
accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Emphasis of a Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that we have not been
engaged to audit the interim financial statements of the Company for the period ended 30
June 2011, Accordingly, we are unable to determine if there are any material adjustments
on the interim financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2011 for them to be in
accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

for Ernst & Young

LT
. - 3 ’ g g
Rashid S. AlRashoud N ﬂ;‘ -'S‘)
Certified Public Accountant LY
Registration No. 366

Riyadh: 11 Ramadan 1433H
(30 July 2012)



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

INTERIM BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2012

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Net investment in finance leases

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Fixed assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Short term loans

Current maturity of long term loans
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Long term loans

Employees’ terminal benefits

Fair value of derivatives

TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Share capital

Statutory reserve

Retained earnings

Cash flow hedge reserve

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Notes
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30 June
2012
(Audited)
SR

93,841,062
1,335,695,602
8,880,612
1,787,029

1,440,204,305

299,000,000
317,986,355
164,903,361
40,261,178
187,653,685
5,915,989
133,710

1,015,854,278

340,000,000
27,546,717
56,937,020

(133,710)

424,350,027

1,440,204,305

The attached notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these interim financial statements.

30 June
2011
(Unaudited)
SR

31,339,599
1,033,223,548
6,405,686
1,612,552

1,072,581,385

64,995,154
195,490,511
69,877,584
39,509,387
332,292,505
4,660,599
154,346

706,980,086

300,000,000
20,170,219
45,585,426

(154,346)

365,601,299

1,072,581,385
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

INTERIM STATEMENT OF INCOME

Notes

INCOME

Lease finance income

Less:

Special commission expense and amortisation
of transaction cost

Net lease finance income
Add:
Other operating income

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and employee related expenses

Rent and premises related expenses, net

Depreciation 6
Other general and administrative expenses 13
Provision for lease losses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

Basic and diluted earnings per share 15

For the six-mouth
period ended 30 June

2012 2011

{(Audited) (Unaudited)
SR SR

77,890,391 63,321,947
11,477,616 8,596,301
66,412,775 54,725,646
748,786 501,846
67,161,561 55,227,492
13,323,458 12,979,501
542,464 490,211
351,356 340,610
1,818,903 1,466,368
7,872,717 4,595,225
23,908,898 19,871,915
43,252,663 35,355,577
1.27 1.04

The attached notes | to 22 form an jntegral part of these interim financial statements.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

INTERIM STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Note
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income for the period

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Amortisation of transaction costs

Depreciation of fixed assets

Provision for lease losses

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilitics
Changes in opcrating assets and liabilitics

Net investment in finance leases

Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Employees’ terminal benefits

Net cash nsed in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Procceds from loans

Repayments of loans

Transaction cost paid

Income tax paid on behalf of non-Saudi shareholders
Zakat paid on behalf of Saudi shareholders
Dividends paid, net

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and ecash equivalents at the end of the period 3

Supplemental disclosures
Special commission paid

Non-cash activity during the period
Zakat accrued on behalf of Saudi shareholders

Income tax accrued on behalf of non-Saudi sharcholders

Fair value change on cash flow hedges

The attached notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these interim financial statements.

For the six-month
period ended 30 June

2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
SR SR
43,252,663 35,355,577
128,642 145,813
351,356 340,610
7,872,717 4,595,225
- (14,759)
51,605,378 40,422,466
(184,458,525) (92,256,467)
(1,537,583) (1,557,731)
102,777,561 17,471,037
6,976,008 57,229
583,943 528,181
(24,053,218) (35,335,285)
(343,133) (325,522)
- 118,888
(343,133) {206,634)
568,985,875 134,995,660
(501,178,655) (92,980,941)
. (21,185)
(3,880,519) (2,498,001
(1,245,824) {915,561)
(15,372,153) (12,699,899)
47,308,724 25,880,073
22,912,373 {9,661,846)
70,928,689 41,001,445
93,841,062 31,339,599
10,912,966 10,064,612
732,449 684,428
3,503,642 2,788,570
56,220 133,104
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)
INTERIM STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Reserve for Cash flow
Share Statutory  the issue of  Retained hedge Proposed
capital reserve  bonus shares  enrnings reserve dividend Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
Six _months ended 30 June 2012
Balance at beginning of the period 300,000,000 27,546,717 40,000,000 10,792,601 (77,490)  22,500.000 400,761,828
Net income for the period - - - 43,252,663 - - 43,252,663
Net change in fair value - - - - (56,220) - (56,220)
Net dividends paid - - - - - (15,372,153) (15,372,153)
Issue of bonus shares (note 12) 40,000,000 (40.000,000) - - - -
Zakat accrued {note 14) - - - (732,449) - (732,449)
Zakat recovered - - - 1,245,824 - (1,245,824) -
Income tax acerued (note 14) - - - (3,503,642) - - (3,503,642)
Income tax recovered - - - 5,882,023 - (5,882,023) -
Balance as st 30 June 2012 340,000,000 27,546,717 - 56,937,020 (133,710) - 424,350,027
Six months ewded 30 June 2011
Balance at beginning of the period 250,000,000 20,170,219 50,000,000 7,652,746 (287.450) 18,750,000 346,285,515
Net income for the period - - - 35,355,577 - - 35,355,577
Net change in fair value - - - - 133,104 - 133,104
Net dividends paid - - - - - (12,699,899) (12,699,899)
Issue of bonus shares (note 12) 50,000,000 - (50,000,000) - - - -
Zakal accrued (note 14) - - - (684,428) - - (684,428)
Z.akat recovered - - - 915,561 - (915,561) -
Income tax accrued (note 14) - - - (2,788,570) - - (2,788,570)
Income tax recovered - - - 5,134,540 - (5,134.540) -
Balance as at 30 June 2011 300,000,000 20,170,219 - 45,585,426 (154,346) - 365,601,299
Sandi Non-Sandi
Sharelolders shareholders Total
Analysis of retained carnings SR SR SR
Six -mounth period ended 30 [une 2012
Balance at beginning of the period 8,969,742 1,822,859 10,792,601
Net income for the period 28,633,263 14,619,400 43,252,663
Zakat/income tax recovered 1,245,824 5,882,023 7,127,847
Zakat/income tax provision (732,449) (3,503,642) (4,236,091)
Balance as at 30 June 2012 38,116,380 18,820,640 56,937,020
Six —nionth period ended 30 June 2011
Balance at beginning of the period 6,576,139 1,076,607 7,652,746
Net income for the period 23,405,392 11,950,185 35,355,577
Zakat/income tax recovered 015,561 5,134,540 6,050,101
Zakat/income tax provision (684,428) (2,788.570) (3,472,998)
Balance as at 30 hme 2011 30,212,664 15,372,762 45,585,426

The attached notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these interim financial statements.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 June 2012

THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (the “Company™) is a closed joint stock company established under the
regulations for companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company operates under commercial
registration number 1010163957 issued in Riyadh on 21 Shawal 1421H (corresponding to 16 January
2001), and non-industrial license number 99 dated 27 Safar 1421H (corresponding to 31 May 2000) issued
by the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, through its four branches in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The
Company had 138 (2011: 118) employees as at 30 June 2012,

The Company’s liead office is located in Riyadh at the following address:

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
343, Al Ma’ather Street

Head Office

P.O. Box 22890, Riyadh 11416
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The objective of the Company is to provide lease financing for movable and immovable assets,
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these interim financial statements are set
out below:

Basis of presentation

These interim financial statements, expressed in Saudi Riyals are prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting standards in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Generally accepted accounting standards
in Saudi Arabia comprise accounting standards issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public
Accountants (“SOCPA”). For matters where there is no guidance in the SOCPA accounting standards, the
relevant International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) is adopted.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, moditied to include the
measurement at fair vahie of derivative financial instruments,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the nuse of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reported period. Although these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at banks including bank overdrafis and investments
with originally maturity of less than three months from the contract date.

Net investinent iu finance leases

Gross investinent in finance leases include the total of futnre lease payments on finance leases (lease
receivables), plus estimated residnal amounts receivable. The difference between the lease receivables and
the cost of the leased asset is recorded as unearned lease finance income and for presentation purposes, is
deducted from the gross investment in finance Jeases. The Company takes security deposits on leases with
the right to set off against the residual value of leased assets and for presentation purposes, these deposits
along with prepaid leasc rentals are deducted from gross investment in finance leases.

Lease finance income is recognised over the term of the lease using the effective yield method.

Services fees charged in respect of processing and other services are recognised as income as the services
are rendered.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provision for lease losses

The Company reviews its lease receivables on a monthly basis to assess whether specific provisions for
impairment should be recorded in the statement of income. In particular, considerable judgment by
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining
the level of provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors
involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, and actual results may differ resulting in future
changes to such provisions.

In addition to specific provisions against individually significant lease receivables, the Company also
makes a collective impairment provision against lease receivables which although not specifically
identified as requiring a specific provision have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. This
collective provision is based on any deterioration in the internal grade of the exposure since it was granted.
The amount of the provision is based on the historical loss pattern {or lease receivables within each grade
and is adjusted to reflect current economic changes.

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as fotlows:

Years
Leasehold improvements 10
Motor vehicles s
Office furniture and fixtures 5
Information technology equipment 4

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Expenditure for repair and maintenance are charged to income. Betterments that increase the value or
materially extend the life of the related asscts are capitalised.

Short terin and long term loans

These loans include special commission bearing borrowings which are recognised initially at cost, less
attributable transaction costs, if' any. Subsequent to initial recognition, special commission bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value recognised
in the statement of income over the period of the borrowings on an effective special commission rate basis.

Impairment and uncollectibility of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
specific financial asset may be impaired. 1f such evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, Impairment is determined as follows:

@ For assets carried at fair value, iimpairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement;

b) For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between cairying value and the present
value of future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset;

(c) For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and

the present value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Employees’ terminal benefits

Employees’ terminal benefits are payable as a lump sum to all employees employed under the terms and
conditions of Saudi Labor and Workmen Law on termination of their employment contracts. The liability
is calculated as the cwuirent value of the vested benefits to which the employee is entitled, should the
eraployec leave at the balance sheet date. Termination payments are based on employees® final salaries and
allowances and their cumulative years of service, as defined by the conditions stated in the laws of the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from the changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the
statement of income, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in equity.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging
imstrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been and are expected to be highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were / are designated.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, for forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is transferred to statement of income for the period.

Zakat and income tax

The Company’s Saudi shareholders are subject to zakat and its non-Saudi shareholders arc subject to
income tax in accordance with the regulations of the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (the “DZIT”) as
applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. An estimate of zakat and income tax arising there from is
provided by a charge to retained earnings and all payments of zakat and income tax made on behalf of the
shareholders are deducted from the first available dividends.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
respective transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities in foreign cmrencies are
translated to Saudi Arabian Riyals at the prevailing exchange rates. Gains and losses resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recognised as income or expense.

Financial instruients
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The carying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the
financial statements approximate their fair value. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective
evidence at the balance sheet date.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and are reported net in the balance sheet when there is a tegally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and when the Company intends to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 June 2012

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following:

30 June 30 June
2012 2011
(Audited) (Linaudited)
SR SR
Cash at banks 93,823,557 31,324,662
Cash in hand 17,505 14,937
93,841,062 31,339,599
4, NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
(Andited) (Unnudited)
SR SR
Lease receivables
- Performing 1,797,657,528 1,403,573,970
- Nou-performing 19,592,329 15,188,901
Residual value 060,884,847 509,514,152
Gross investment in finasce leases 2,478,134,704 1,928,277,023
Non-refundable security deposits (660,111,288) (508,755,827)
Prepaid lease rentals (216,349,384) (172,797,981)
Uneamed lease finance income (192,640,718) (151,146,935)
Net fuvestinent in finance leases 1,409,033,314 1,095,576,280
Provision for lease losses (73,337,712) (62,352,732)
1,335,695,602 1,033,223,548

The maturity of the gross investment in finance leases (i.e. minimum lease payments (“MLPs”)) and net investment

in finance leases (i.e. present value of MLPs) is as follows:

30 June 2012

30 June 2011
SR SR
MLPs PV of MLPs MLPs PV of MLPs
Not later than one year 1,064,589,345
Later than one year but not later than five years  1,413,545,359
Later than five years -

719,027,093 880,119,330 583,141,115
690,006,221 1,040,681,181 511,487,791
- 7,476,512 947,374

2,478,134,704  [,409,033,314 1,928,277,023 1,095,576,280




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

4. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES (Continued)

Economnic sector risk concentrations for amounts due under net investment in finance leases are as follows;

Nou-performing

Performing lease lease Allowance for

Inrvestment in
finance leases,

contracts, net coutracts, net lease losses net
As at 30 June 2012
Manufacturing 446,475,725 10,906,722 (4,536,217) 452,846,230
Construction & contracting 370,984,472 645,035 (278,180) 371,351,327
Services 362,380,534 417,147 417,147) 362,380,534
Trading 201,765,766 3,307,128 (229,043) 204,843,851
Others 11,823,249 327,536 (327,536) 11,823,249
Collective impairment provision - - (67,549,589) (67,549,589)
1,393,429,746 15,603,568 (73,337,712) 1,335,695,602
As at 30 June 2011
Manufacturing 406,947,556 9,668,470 (5,248,923) 411,367,103
Construction & contracting 284,565,441 996,540 (105,599) 285,456,382
Services 248,401,485 703,428 (703,428) 248,401,485
Trading 131,147,533 67,038 (67,038) 131,147,533
Others 12,741,575 337,214 (337,214) 12,741,575
Collective impairment provision - - (55,890,530) (55,890,530)
1,083,803,590 11,772,690 (62,352,732) 1,033,223,548
The movement in the provision for lease losses was as follows:
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
SR SR
Balance at the beginning of the period 66,985,639 57,757,507
Provision for the period 7,872,717 4,595,225
Balance written ofT during period (1,520,644) -
73,337,712 62,352,732
5. ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
SR SR
(Audited) (Unaudited)
Prepaid rent 1,897,957 1,619,269
Loans and advances to staff 2,527,025 1,849,750
Advance tax 1,425,649 1,082,575
Prepaid professional cost 1,097,166 -
Other receivables from lessees 540,630 716,327
Advance charges against letter of credit (note 16) 392,359 -
Prepaid insurance 289,129 311,582
Prepaid visa cost 80,420 90,099
Reccivable from insurance companies - 178,032
Others 630,277 558,052

8,880,612

6,405,686
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 June 2012

7. SHORT TERM LOANS AND CURRENT MATURITY OF LONG TERM LOANS

30 Juue 30 June
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unandited)
SR SR
Short term loans 299,000,000 64,995,154
Current maturity of long term loans (note 10) 317,986,355 195,490,511

The short term loans carry special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margin. These facilities are secured
by the assignment of lease contract receivables. Under the terms of the arrangements, the Company has to adhere to
certain financial and non-financial covenants.

The Company has an overdraft facility of SR 40 million from a local bank, which has not been drawn down as of
the balance sheet date. The facility carries special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margin payable on
monthly basis. The facility is secured by the assignment of lease contract receivables.

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

These represent payables against purchase of assets leased by the Company.

9. ACCRULD EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

30 June 30 june

2012 2011
(Audited) (Unandited)
SR SR

Proposed lease related payables (a) 25,540,101 18,637,904
Zakat & income tax accrued on behalf of shareholders 4,700,496 4,087,099
Accrued special conunission expense 3,661,720 11,483,201
Salaries and employee related expenses 1,359,821 970,810
Insurance claims to be settled 1,163,220 1,010,267
Legal and professional charges 595,267 498,397
Others 3,240,553 2,821,709

40,261,178 39,509,387

a. These include advance security deposits, prepaid lease payments and front-end fees of lease contracts not

executed as at balance sheet date, and other payables for lessecs.

10. LONG TERM LOANS

Long term loans (a)

International Finance Corporation loan (b)

Less: unamortised fransaction costs

Less: current maturity (note 7)

30 June 30 June
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
SR SR
415,298,909 427,081,712
90,937,441 101,562,443
(596,310) (861,139)
505,640,040 521,783,016
(317,986,355) (195,490,511)
187,653,685 332,292,505
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

10. LONG TERM LOANS (Continued)

a.  The long-term loans carry special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margins or fixed rates payable on
quarterly basis and semi-aimnual basis. These facilities are secured by the assighment of lease contract
receivables. Under the terms of the arrangements, the Company has to adhere to certain financial and non-
financial covenants.

b.  The Company has facilities from International Finance Corporation (“IFC’), amounting to USD 37 million (SR
138.75 million). These loans are repayable over a period of 7 to 7.5 years from the date of first drawdown (i.e.
10 July 2006) in equal half yearly installments with a grace period of 24 months. These facilities carry fixed
special commission rates and are secured against assigniment of lease contract receivables.

11 DERIVATIVES

As at 30 June 2012, the Company held Interest Rate Swaps (“IRS”) of a notional value of around SR 97 million
(2011: SR 16 million), in order to reduce its exposure to interest rate risks against long term loans.

Fair value of cash flows hedge of SR 133,710 (2011: SR 154,346) represents the negative mark to market values of
the interest rate swaps as of 30 June 2012. The cash flow hedge reserve represents the effective portion of cash flow
hedges. The cumutlative deferred gain or loss on the hedge is recognised in the statement of income when the
hedged transaction impacts the income or loss.

12, SHARE CAPITAL AND STATUTORY RESERVE
In 2012, the Company increased its paid up share capital to SR 340 million (2011: SR 300 million) by issuing bonus

shares amounting to SR 40 million (2011: SR 50 inillion) through the capitalisation of retained earnings. The
pattern of shareholding as of 30 June 2012 is as follows:

Orwnership Number Share capital

Shareholders percentage of shares (Amount in SR)
The Saudi Investment Bank (“SAIB”) 37.995% 12,918,300 129,183,000
Trade Development & Investiment Group Limited 32.000% 10,880,000 108,800,000

Mr. Musaed Bin Mohammad Bin AbdulAziz

Al Mineefi 0.005% 1,700 17,000
ORI1X Corporation - Japan 27.500% 9,350,000 93,500,000
ORIX Leasing Pakistan Limited — Pakistan 2.500% 850,000 8,500,000
34,000,000 340,000,000

The portion of Saudi to non-Saudi shareholders (including non-Saudi shareholders in SAIB) is 66.2% to 33.8%
(2011: 66.2% to 33.8%).

As required by Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies, 10% of the net income for the year is transferred to a
statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such transfers when the reserve totals 50% of the
capital. The reserve is not available for distribution.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

13. OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
(Audited) (Uhaudited)

SR SR
License, legal and professional charges 642,762 617,580
Comimumication expenses 337,575 301,936
Advertising and promotion expenses 283,871 165,871
Office vepair and maintenance cost 161,422 106,573
Printing and stationery 135,749 92,173
Travelling and transportation 98,435 75,562
Insurance of own assets 25,891 25,668
Others 133,198 81,005
1,818,903 1,466,368

14. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
a) Zakat
Charge for the period

The zakat charge of SR 732,449 (2011: SR 684,428) for the period consists of the current period provision and is
based on the following:

30 June 30 June
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unamdited)
SR SR
Shareholders’ equity at beginning 385,389,675 333,585,616
Opening provisions and adjustments 5,031,599 4,028,281
Borrowings, net 463,640,049 467,782,509
Book value of long term assets (3,033,414) (2,729,338)
Net investment in finance leases (1,335,695,602) (1,033,223,548)
(484,667,702) (230,556,480)
Adjusted net income for the period 44,256,759 36,128,106

Zakat base (440,410,943) (194,428,374)

As the zakat base for 2012 and 2011 are negative, zakat is calculated based on adjusted net income for the periods
ended 30 June, attributable to the ultimate Saudi sharcholders as follows:

30 June 130 June
2012 2011
{Andited) (Unaudited)
SR SR
Adjusted net income attributable to Saudi shareholders 29,297,974 23,916,806
Zakat @ 2.5% 732,449 597,920
Zakat under protest - 86,508
Net antount charged to retained eamings 732,449 684,428




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 June 2012

14, ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)

Mouvement in provision

Balance as at 1 January
Provided during the period
Payment during the period

Balance as at 30 June

b) Ducome tax

Charge for the period

30 June
2012
(Audited)
SR

1,710,234
732,449
(1,245,824)

1,196,859

30 June
2011
{(Unaudited)
SR
1,529,662
684,428
(915,561)

1,298,529

Income tax liability for the 2012 and 2011 has been calculated based on adjusted net income for the period ended 30

June as follows:

30 June 30 June
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
SR SR
Adjusted net income attributable to Non-Saudi shareholders 14,857,233 12,176,101
Income tax payable @ 20% 2,971,447 2,435,220
Income tax under protest (see note (c) below) 532,195 353,350
3,503,642 2,788,570
Mouwentent in provision
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unaudited)
SR SR
Balance as at | January 2,454,865 1,415,424
Provided during the period 3,503,642 2,788,570
Payment during the period (2,454,870) (1,415,424)
Balance as at 30 June 3,503,637 2,788,570
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

14, ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)
c) Status of assessments

Zakat assessment for the period ended 31 December 2001 and for the years ended 31 December 2002, 31 December
2003 and 31 December 2004 have been assessed at SR 5.5 million in excess of the provision made in these interim
financial statements, This is principally due to the fact that the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (“DZIT”) has
not allowed a deduction from zakat base of the net investment in finance leases.

The Company has appealed against this treatment but its appeal was disallowed early in 2010 by the Preliminary
Appeal Committee. The Company has filed an appeal to the Higher Appeal Committee. There is a potential risk of
an additional claim of SR 83.5 million, if the same principle were to be applied for al subsequent periods up to 31
December 2011.

On the basis of expert opinion received, the Company considers it unlikely that the present position of DZIT will be
upheld throughout the appeal process, because the issue of deduction of net investment in leases has industry wide
implications not only for leasing companies but also for mortgage finaice business and any other finance related
business where the main assets are receivables. The matter is now before the apprapriate regulatory authorities for
discussion, as the present treatment by the DZIT is highly discriminatory for Saudi shareholders and detrimental to
the growth of financial intermediation in the Country with adverse consequence for Saudi economy.

Due to the uncertainties involved, the Company is unable to assess accurately the final outcome of this matter and
has not provided for any potential additional liability in these interim financial statements. The Saudi shareholders
have issued written proportionate guarantees to the Company to reimburse it in full for the potential Zakat liability,
should it be payable.

Further, the Company has protested the disallowances of the provision for lease losses in the adjusted profits and
has filed an appeal againsi the same. For the period ended 30 June 2012, in order to avoid aiy penalty due to late
payments, the Company has in addition to the zakat and income tax liability indicated in the returns, provided /paid
income tax of SR 532,195, These payments / provisions have been made “under protest” on behall of the
sharehoiders.

15, BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the period ended 30 June 2012 is calculated by dividing the net income
for the period attributable to the shareholders by 34 million shares.

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the comparative period has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the
effect of the capital increase.

16. COMMITMENTS

30 June 30 June
2012 2011
(Audited) (Unandited)
SR SR
Finance lease contracts not yet executed 235,880,870 220,180,487
Operating lease commitments for office premises 8,787,519 1,387,500
Bank guarantees issned on behalf of the Company 6,708,811 6,708,811




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

17. SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component that is engaged either in providing products or services (a business
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

The company essentially monitors its business as a single business segment and accordingly it is Management’s
opinion that segment reporting would not be relevant. The Company only operates in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

18. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a strong capital base. Capital adequacy ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the
Company’s eligible capital with its balance sheet assets, commitments and notional amount of derivatives, if any, at
a weighted amount to reflect their relative risk.

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
{Audited) (Unaudited)
Total capital Tier I capital Total capital Tier I capital
ratio % ratio % ratio % ratio %
Capital adequacy ratios 28.11% 26.86% 30.64% 29.39%

19. RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail fo discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The Company has established procedures to manage credit exposure including
evaluation of lessees’ credit worthiness, formal credit approvals, assigning credit limits, obtaining collateral such as
sceurity deposits and personal guarantees. Individual lease contracts generally are for terms not exceeding forty-
eight onths.

Concentrations of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in sitnilar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be affected similarly by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments
affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

The Company manages its credit risk exposure through diversification of leasing activities to ensure that there is no
undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or businesses.

The credit risks on gross amounts due in relation to the investment in finance leases is mitigated by the retention of
title on leased assets and security deposits.

For details of the comnposition of the investment in finance leases portfolio refer to note 4.

The Company follows a credit classification mechanism, primarily driven by days delinquency as a tool to manage
the quality of credit risk of the lease portfolio. The Company presently maintains four grades which differentiate
between performing and non-performing portfolios and allocates provisions accordingly.

Special conunission rate risk

Special commission rate risk is the uncertainty of future camings resulting from fluctuations in special commission
rates. The risk arises when there is a mismatch in the assets and liabilities which are subject to special commission
rate adjustment within a specified period. The most important source of such rate risk is the Company’s borrowings,
and investment and leasing activities, where fluctuations in special commission rates, if any, are reflected in the
results of operations.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

19. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Special conunission rate risk (continued)

Special commission rate gap is a common measure of rate risk. A positive gap occurs when more assets than
liabilities are subject to rate changes during a prescribed period of time. A negative gap occurs when liabilities
exceed assets subject to rate changes during a prescribed period of time.

The effective special commission rate (effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used
in a present value calculation, results in the carrying amount of the instrument. The rate is a historical rate of a fixed
rate instrument carried at amortised cost and a current market rate for a floating rate instrument or an instrument
cairied at fair value.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in special commission rates, before the etfect of any hedging,
relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligations with floating special commission rate amounting to
SR 277 million (2011: 357 million) having an overall effective commission rate of 2.99% (2011: 3.58%).

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be
caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up
immediately.

The contractual maturities of liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the coutractual maturity date and do not take account of the effective maturities as indicated by the
Company’s availability of liquid funds. Management monitars the maturity profile to ensure that adequate liquidity
is maintained. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

Within 3 3to12 No fixed
months months 1to5years naturity Total
30 June 2012 (Andited) SR SR SR SR SR
Liabilities
Short term loans 300,239,142 - - - 300,239,142
Accounts payable 164,903,361 - - - 164,903,361
Accrued expenses and other liabilitics 40,261,178 - - - 40,261,178
Long tern loans 38,661,426 292218441 197,669,853 - 528,549,720
Employees’ terminal benefits - - - 5,915,989 5,915,989
544,065,107 292,218,441 197,669,853 5,915,989 1,039,869,390
30 June 2011 (Unaudited)
Linbilitics
Short term loans 65,286,094 - - - 65,286,094
Accounts payable 69,877,584 - - - 69,877,584
Accried expenses and other liabilities 39,509,387 - - - 39,509,387
Long term loans 35,221,643 173,583,312 348,688,096 - 557,493,651
Employees’ terminal benefits - - - 4,660,599 4,660,599
209,894,708 173,583,312 348,688,696 4,660,599 736,827,315

The Company has unutilised bank facilities of SR 459 nillion (2011: SR 422 million) as at balance sheet date to

meet liquidity requirements.




Saudi OR1X Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 June 2012

19. RISK MANAGEMENT (Countinued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or

settled.

Less than More than 30 June 2012 Less than More than 30 June 2011

12 months 12 months SR 12 months 12 months SR

(Audited) {Unaudited)

Cash and cash equivalents 93,841,062 - 93,841,062 31,339,599 - 31,339,599
Net investiment in finance
leases 681,605,223 654,090,379  1,335,695,602 549,952,699 483,270,849  1,033,223,548
Advances, prepayment and
other receivables 8,880,612 - 8,880,612 6,405,686 - 6,405,686
Fixed assets - 1,787,029 1,787,029 - 1,612,552 1,612,552
Total assets 784,326,897 655,877,408  1,440,204,305 587,697,984 484,883,401  1,072,581,385
Short term loans and
current maturity of long
term loans 616,986,355 - 616,986,355 260,485,665 - 260,485,665
Accounts payable 164,903,361 - 164,903,361 69,877,584 - 69,877,584
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 40,261,178 - 40,261,178 39,509,387 - 39,509,387
Long term loans - 187,653,685 187,653,685 - 332,292,505 332,292,505
Employees’ terminal
benefits - 5,915,989 5,915,989 - 4,660,599 4,660,599
Fair value of derivatives - 133,710 133,710 - 154,346 154,346
Total liabilities 822,150,894 193,703,384  1,015,854,278 369,872,636 337,107,450 706,980,086
Net (37,823,997) 462,174,024 424,350,027 217,825,348 147,775,951 365,601,299

20. RELATED P}SRTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of its activities, the Company transacts business with related parties which are related to its
shareholders. The Company is provided with technical assistance from ORIX Corporation, Japan and OR1X
Leasing Pakistan Limited at no cost ander an arrangement. Other amounts relating to its sharehoiders and associates
inchided in the interim financial statements which have been transacted are as follows:

Balances with shareliolders:

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Short term loan

Accrned special commission

Transactions with shareholders:

Rent and premises related expenses

Special commission expenses on overdrafts and bank charges
Finance leasc syndication

Balance with an affiliate:
Rent and premises related advance on subletting to an associate

Transactions with an affiliate:
Rent and premises related income on subletting to an associate

30 June 2012
(Audited)

1,884,858

23,000,000
51,733

1,065,000
469,263
32,715,681

1,034,694

636,735

30 June 2011
(Unaudited)

1,495,863

968,096
23,246

875,511

583,674
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 June 2012

21. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Prior period figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to conforn to current period presentation.
22, BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL

These interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 Ramadan 1433H (corresponding
to 30 July 2012).

20
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SAUDI ORIX LEASING COMPANY

Scope of Audit

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Saudi ORIX Leasing Company, a
Closed Saudi Joint Stock Company (the “Company") as of 31 December 2011 and the
related statements of income, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the year
then ended . These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's )
management and have been prepared by them in accordance with the provisions of Article
123 of the Regulations for Companies and submitted to us together with all the
information and explanations which we required. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
degree of assurance to enable us to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Unqualified Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements taken as a whole:

iy present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 31
December 2011 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia.

i) comply with the requirements of the Regulations for Companies and the Company's
by-laws in so far as they affect the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements.

for Ernst & Young
L /SJ Tl L

v P

Certified Public Accountant \\ : | \ .
Registration No. 366 Wk (e g

Riyadh: 8 Rabi Al Awal 1433H
(31 January 2012)



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2011

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Net investment in finance leases

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Fixed assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Short term loans

Current maturity of long term loans
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Long term loans

Employees’ terminal benefits

Fair value of derivatives

TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS®’ EQUITY
Share capital

Statutory reserve

Reserve for the issue of bonus shares
Retained earnings

Cash flow hedge reserve

Proposed dividend

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

The attached notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes
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2011 2010
SR SR
70,928,689 41,001,445
1,159,109,794 945,562,306
5,917,380 3,765,380
1,795,252 1,731,769
1,237,751,115 992,060,900
99,996,871 -
214,264,565 122,929,629
62,125,800 52,406,547
32,749,773 38,310,147
422,442,742 427,709,194
5,332,046 4,132,418
77,490 287,450
836,989,287 645,775,385
300,000,000 250,000,000
27,546,717 20,170,219
40,000,000 50,000,000
10,792,601 7,652,746
(77,490) (287,450)
22,500,000 18,750,000
400,761,828 346,285,515
1,237,751,115 992,060,900
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2011

INCOME
Lease finance income
Investinent income

Total lease finance and investment income

Less:

Special commission expense including
amortisation of transaction cost

Net lease finance and investment income
Add:
Other operating income

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and employee related expenses
Rent and premises related expenses, net
Depreciation

General and administrative expenses
Provision for lease losses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The attached notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

2011 2010
SR SR

133,098,464 118,200,998
- 3,088
133,098,464 118,204,686
15,972,773 25,059,280
117,125,691 93,145,406
828,517 1,329,829
117,954,208 94,475,235
30,538,341 26,709,293
996,240 1,258,509
657,603 691,628
2,768,912 2,339,739
9,228,132 9,044,796
44,189,228 40,543,965
73,764,980 53,931,270
2.46 1.80
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income for the year

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash front operating activities:

Amortisation of transaction cost
Depreciation

Provision for lease losses

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net investiment in finance leases
Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Employees’ terminal benefits

Net cash (used in) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Net cash uscd in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from loans

Repayment of loans

Transaction cost paid

Income tax paid on behalf of non-Saudi shareholders
Zakat paid on behalf of Saudi shareholders
Dividends paid, net

Net cash from (used in) {inancing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Supplemental disclosures
Special commission paid

Non-~cash activity during the year
Zakat accrued on behalf of Saudi shareholders

Income tax accrued on behalf of non-Saudi shareholders

The attached notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2011 2010
SR SR
73,764,980 53,931,270
282,002 170,643
657,603 691,628
9,228,132 9,044,796
(14,759) (7,200)
83,917,958 63,831,137
(222,775,620) (6,085,554)
(2,152,000) (620,225)
9,719,253 28,975,413
(6,780,387) 4,525,223
1,199,628 866,166
(136,871,168) 91,492,160
(825,217) (293,916)
118,890 7,200
(706,327) (286,716)
539,584,859 150,000,000
(353,780,321) (201,800,052)
(21,185) (973,651)
(4,663,154) (3,747,784)
(915,561) (510,811)
(12,699,899) (9,542,515)
167,504,739 (66,574,813)
29,927,244 24,630,631
41,001,445 16,370,814
70,928,689 41,001,445
25,120,939 21,116,429
1,096,133 1,065,252
5,702,595 4,330,298




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Reserve for
tle issue of Casli flow
Share Statutory bonus Retained hedge Proposed
capital reserve shares eariings reserve dividend Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR

Balance as at 1 January 2010 250,000,000 14,777,092 - 24,052,668 (604,481) 18,750,000 306,975,279
Net income for the year - - - 53,931,270 - - 53,931,270
Transfer {0 statutory reserve - 5,393,127 - (5,393,127) - - -
Net change in fair value - - - - 317,031 - 317,031
Net dividends paid - - - - - (9,542,515)  (9,542,515)
Zakat accrued (note 14) - - - (1,065,252) - - (1,065,252)
Zakal recovered - - - 1,692,747 - (1,692,747) -
Income iax accrued (note 14) - - - (4,330,298) - - (4,330,298)
Income tax recovered - - - 7,514,738 - (7,514,738) -
Transfer to reserve for the issue of

bonus shares - - 50,000,000  (50,000,000) - - -
Proposed dividend - - - (18,750,000) - 18,750,000 -
Balance as at 31 December 2010 250,000,000 20,170,219 50,000,000 7,652,746 (287,450) 18,750,000 346,285,515
Net income for the year - - - 73,764,980 - - 73,764,980
Transfer to statutory reserve - 7,376,498 - (7,376,498) - - -
Net change in fair value - - - - 209,960 - 209,960
Net dividends paid - - - - - (12,699,899) (12,699.899)
Issue of bomus shares { nole 12) 50,000,000 - (50,000,000) - - - -
Zakat accrued (note 14) (1,096,133} - - (1,096,133)
Zakat recovered - - - 915,561 - {915,561) -
Income tax accrucd (note 14) - - - (5,702,595) - - (5,702,595)
Income iax recovered - - - 5,134,540 - (5,134,540) -
‘I'ransfer to reserve for the issue of

bonus shares - - 40,000,000  (40,000,000) - - -
Proposed dividend - - - (22,500,000) - 22,500,000 -
Balance as at 31 December 2011 300,000,000 27,546,717 40,000,000 10,792,601 (77,490) 22,500,000 400,761,828

Saundi Non-Saudi
Shareholders shareholders Total

Analysis of retained earnings SR SR SR
Balance as at 1 January 2010 19,328,893 4,723,775 24,052,668
Net income for the year 35,702,501 18,228,769 53,931,270
Transfer to the statutory reserve (3,570,250) (1,822,877) (5,393,127)
Zakat/income tax recovered 1,692,747 7,514,738 9,207,485
Zakat/income tax provision (1,065,252) (4,330,298) (5,395,550)
Transfer to reserve for the issue of bonus shares (33,100,000) (16,900,000) (50,000,000)
Proposed dividend (12,412,500} (6,337,500) (18,750,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2010 6,576,139 1,076,607 7,652,746
Net income for the year 48,832,417 24,932,563 73,764,980
Transfer to the statutory reserve (4,883,242) (2,493,256) (7,376,498)
Zakat/income tax recovered 915,561 5,134,540 6,050,101
Zakat/income tax provision (1,096,133) (5,702,595) (6,798,728)
‘Transfer to reserve for the issue of bonus shares (26,480,000) (13,520,000) (40,000,000)
Proposed dividend (14,895,000) {7,605,000) (22,500,000)
Balance as at 31 Deecember 2011 8,969,742 1,822,859 10,792,601

The attached notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2011

1. THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (the “Company™) is a closed joint stock company established under the
regulations for companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company operates under commercial
registration number 1010163957 issued in Riyadh on 21 Shawal 1421H (corresponding to 16 January
2001), and non-industrial license number 99 dated 27 Safar 1421H (corresponding to 31 May 2000) issued
by the Ministry of Comunerce and Industry, through its four branches (2010: three branches) in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company had 123 (2010: 118) employees as at 31 December 2011.

The Company’s head office is located in Riyadh at the following address:

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
343, Al Ma’ather Street

Head Office

P.O. Box 22890, Riyadh 11416
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The objective of the Company is to provide lease financing for movable and immovable assets.
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

Basis of presentation

These financial statements, expressed in Saudi Riyals are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting standards in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Generally accepted accounting standards in Saudi
Arabia comprise accounting standards issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants
(“SOCPA”). For matters where there is no guidance in the SOCPA accounting standards, the relevant
International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) is adopted.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the
measurement at fair value of derivative financial instruments.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reported period. Although these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Caslt and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at banks including bank overdrafts and investments
with original maturity of less than three months from the contract date.

Net investment in finance leases

Gross investment in finance leases include the total of future lease payments on finance leases (lease
receivables), plus estimated residual amounts receivable. The difference between the lease receivables and
the cost of the leased asset is recorded as unearned lease finance income and for presentation purposes, is
deducted from the gross investment in finance leases. The Company takes security deposits on leases with
the right to set off against the residual value of leased assets and for presentation purposes, these deposits
along with prepaid lease rentals are deducted from gross investment in finance leases.

Lease finance income is recognised over the term of the lease using the effective yield method.

Services fees charged in respect of processing and other services are recognised as income as the services
are rendered.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provision for lease losses

The Company reviews its lease receivables on a monthly basis to assess whether specific provisions for
impairment should be recorded in the statement of income. In particular, considerable judgment by
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining
the level of provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors
involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, and actual results may differ resulting in future
changes to such provisions.

In addition to specific provisions against individually significant lease receivables, the Company also
makes a collective impairment provision against lease receivables which although not specifically
identified as requiring a specific provision have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. This
collective provision is based on any deterioration in the internal grade of the exposure since it was granted.
The amount of the provision is based on the historical loss pattern for lease receivables within each grade
and is adjusted to reflect current economic changes.

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is
provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Years
Leasehold improvements 10
Motor vehicles 5
Office furniture and fixtures 5
Information technology equipment 4

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. 1f any such indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount,

Expenditure for vepair and maintenance are charged to income. Betterments that increase the value or
materially extend the life of the related assets are capitalised.

Short-terin and long-term loans

These loans include special commission bearing borrowings which are recognised initially at cost, less
attributable fransaction costs, if any. Subsequent to initial recognition, special commission bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost aud redemption value recognised
in the statement of income over the period of the borrowings on an effective special commission rate basis.

Impainment and uncollectibility of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
specific financial asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement. Impairment is determined as follows:

(a) For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement;

{b) For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present
value of future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset;

{c) For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and

the present value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2011

\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employees’ terminal benefits

Employees’ terminal benefits are payable as a lumyp sum to all employees employed under the terms and
conditions of Saudi Labor and Workmen Law on termination of their employment contracts. The liability
is calculated as the current value of the vested benefits to which the employee is entitled, should the
employee leave at the balance sheet date. Termination payments are based on employees’ final salaries and
allowances and their cmulative years of service, as defined by the conditions stated in the laws of the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge acconnting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative

Any gains or Josses arising from the changes in the fair valie of derivatives are taken directly to the
statement of income, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in equity.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an nnrecognised firm
comumnitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being liedged and how the entity will
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair vahie in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been and are expected to be highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were / are designated.

Hedge accounting is discontinnied when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, for forecast transactions, any cummlative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or Joss recognised in
equity is transferred to statement of income for the period.

Zakat and income tax

The Company’s Saudi shareholders are subject to zakat and its non-Saudi shareholders are subject to
income tax in accordance with the regulations of the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (the “DZIT”) as
applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. An estimate of zakat and income tax arising there from is
provided by a charge to retained earnings and all payments of zakat and income tax made on behalf of the
shareholders are deducted from the first available dividends.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
respective transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated to Saudi Arabian Riyals at the prevailing exchange rates. Gains and losses resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recognised as income or expense,




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities arc recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the
financial statements approximate their fair value. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective
evidence at the balance sheet date.

Offsetting

Financial assets and labilities are offset and are reported net in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and when the Company intends to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following:

Cash at banks
Cash in hand

- Non-performing

Residual value

Gross investment in finance leases
Non-refundable security deposits
Prepaid lease rentals

Unearned lease finance incoine

Net investment in finance leases
Provision for lease losses

The maturity of the gross investment in finance leases (i.e. minimum lease payments (“MLPs”)) and net investinent

4, NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES
- Lease receivables
- Performing

in finance leases (i.e. present value of MLPs) is as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

2011 2010
SR SR
70,913,689 40,986,508
15,000 14,937
70,928,689 41,001,445
2011 2010
SR SR
1,575,442,154 1,277,979,091
14,220,639 9,446,031
544,565,995 469,618,659
2,134,228,788 1,757,043,781
(543,789,780) (468,815,602)
(194,170,108) (159,440,618)
(170,173,467) (125,467,748)
1,226,095,433 1,003,319,813
(66,985,639) (57.757,507)
1,159,109,794 945,562,306

2011 2010

SR SR
MLPs PV of MLPs MLPs PV of MLPs
953,383,903 641,950,239 833,402,928 577,201,944
1,174,012,193 583,814,718 922,196,983 425,940,746
6,832,692 330,476 1,443,870 177,123
2,134,228,788 1,226,095,433 1,757,043,781 1,003,319,813




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2011

4. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES (Continued)
Economic sector risk concentrations for amounts due under net investment in finauce leases are as follows:

Non-performing

Performing lease lease Allewance for Investinent in
contracts, net contracts, net lease losses  finauce leases, net
As at 31 Decenber 2011
Manufacturing 419,202,651 9,015,519 (4,250,919) 423,967,251
Construction & contracting 313,290,370 996,540 (199,383) 314,087,527
Services 296,273,372 703,428 (703,428) 296,273,372
Trading 176,205,705 67,038 (67,038) 176,205,705
Others 10,009,873 330,937 (330,937) 10,009,873
Collective impairment provision - - (61,433,934) (61,433,934)
1,214,981,971 11,113,462 (66,985,639) 1,159,109,794
As at 31 Decesnber 2010
Manufacturing 357,152,034 6,086,051 (5,697,617) 357,540,468
Construction & contracting 247,069,391 58,707 (58,707 247,069,391
Services 258,372,502 829,434 (727,314) 258,474,622
Trading 120,083,869 67,038 (67,038) 120,083,869
Others 13,256,273 344,514 (339,479) 13,261,308
Collective impairment provision - - (50,867,352) (50,867,352)
995,934,069 7,385,744 (57,757,507) 945,562,306

The movement in the provision for lease losses was as follows:

2011 2010
SR SR
Balance at the beginning of the year 57,751,507 48,712,711
Provision for the year 9,228,132 9,044,796
66,985,639 57,757,507
5. ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2011 2010
SR SR
Loans and advances to staff 1,976,011 1,673,404
Advance against letter of credit (note 16) 1,382,643 -
Other receivables from lessees 681,000 723,052
Prepaid rent 656,218 793,875
Prepaid insurance 311,072 80,036
Receivable fiom insurance companies 178,032 -
Prepaid visa cost 91,212 60,291
Others 641,192 434,722

5,917,380 3,765,380
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2011

7. SHORT TERM LOANS AND CURRENT MATURITY OF LONG TERM LOANS
2011 2010
SR SR
Short term loans 99,996,871 -
Current maturity of long term loans (note 10) 214,264,565 122,929,629

These short term loans carry special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margin. These facilities are secured
by the assignment of lease contract receivables. Under the terms of the arrangements, the Company has to adhere to
certain financial and non-financial covenants.

The Company has an overdraft facility of SR 40 million from a local bank, which has not been drawn down as of
the balance sheet date. The facility carries special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margin payable on
monthly basis. The facility is secured by the assignment of lease contract receivables.

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

These represent payables against purchase of assets leased by the Company.

9. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
2011 2010
SR SR

Proposed lease related payables (a) 12,714,608 12,706,037
Zakat & income tax accrued on behalf of shareholders 4,165,099 2,945,086
Accrued special commission expense 3,646,970 13,077,138
Insurance premium payable 2,258,933 1,557,040
Insurance claims to be settled 1,161,471 1,059,538
Salaries and employee related expenses 5,538,567 4,550,145
Legal and professional charges 675,533 506,268
Others 2,588,592 1,908,893

32,749,773 38,310,147

a. These include advance security deposits, prepaid lease payments and front-end fees of lease contracts not
executed as at balance sheet date, and other payables for lessees.

10. LONG TERM LOANS

2011 2010
SR SR

Long term loans (a) 541,182,316 444,749,647
International Finance Corporation loan (b) 96,249,942 106,874,944
Less: unamortised transaction costs (724,951) (985,768)

636,707,307 550,638,823
Less: current maturity (note 7) (214,264,565) (122,929,629)

422,442,742 427,709,194
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2011

10. LONG TERM LOANS (Continued)

a. These long-term Joans carry special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margins or fixed rates payable
on quarterly basis and semi-annual basis. These facilities are secured by the assignment of lease contract
receivables. Under the terms of the arrangements, the Company has to adhere to certain financial and non-
financial covenants.

b. The Company has facilities from International Finance Corporation (“IFC”), amounting to USD 37 million (SR
138.75 million). These loans are repayable over a period of 7 to 7.5 years from the date of first drawdown (i.e.
10 July 2006) in equal half yearly installments with a grace period of 24 months. These facilities carry fixed
special commission rates and are secured against assignment of lease contract receivables. Residual front end
fee of SR 555,585 (2010: SR 783,841) has been netted off from the loan amount and is amortised over the term
of loan on an effective yield basis.

11. DERIVATIVES

As at 31 December 201J, the Companty held Interest Rate Swaps (“IRS”) of a notional value of around SR 121
million (2010: SR 34 milkion), in order to reduce its exposure to interest rate risks against long term loans.

Fair value of cash flows hedge of SR 77,490 (2010: SR 287,450) represents the negative mark to market values of
the interest rate swaps as of 31 December 2011. The cash flow liedge reserve represents the effective portion of
cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedge is recognised in the statement of income when
the hedged transaction impacts the income or loss.

12. SHARE CAPITAL AND STATUTORY RESERVE
In 2011, the Company increased its paid up share capital to SR 300 million by issuing bonus shares amounting to

SR 50 million through the capitalisation of retained earnings. The pattern of shareholding as of 31 December 2011
is as follows:

Ouwnership Number Share capital

Sharelolders percentage of shares (Amount in SR)
The Saudi Investment Bank (“SAIB”) 37.995% 11,398,500 113,985,000
Trade Development & Investment Group Limited 32.000% 9,600,000 96,000,000

Mr. Musaed Bin Mohammad Bin AbdulAziz

Al Mineefi 0.005% 1,500 15,000
ORIX Corporation — Japan 27.500% 8,250,000 82,500,000
ORIX Leasing Pakistan Limited — Pakistan 2.500% 750,000 7,500,000
30,000,000 300,000,000

The portion of Saudi to non-Saudi shareholders (including non-Saudi shareholders in SAIB) is 66.2% to 33.8%
(2010: 66.2% to 33.8%).

As required by Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies, 10% of the net income for the year is transferred to a
statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such transfers when the reserve totals $0% of the
capital. The reserve is not available for distribution.

13



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2011

13. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2011 2010
SR SR

License, legal and professional charges 1,207,917 1,235,182
Communication expenses 604,446 555,280
Office repair and maintenance cost 210,022 255,506
Printing and stationery 201,096 183,315
Travelling and transportation 177,584 123,817
Advertising and promotion expenses 157,695 218,587
Insurance of own assets 49,659 53,757
Others 160,493 214,295

2,768,912 2,839,739

14. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
n) Zaknt
Charge for the year

The zakat charge of SR 1,096,133 (2010: SR 1,065,252) for the year consists of the current year provision and is
based on the following:

2011 2010
SR SR

Shareholders’ equity at beginning 333,585,616 297,432,764
Opening provisions and adjustnients 3,985,819 2,958,210
Borrowings, net 415,073,742 441,220,157
Book value of long term assets (1,940,377) (1,927,461)
Net investment in finance leases (1,159,109,794) (945,562,306)

(408,404,994) (205,878,636)
Adjusted net income for the year 75,276,382 55,320,909
Zakat base (333,128,612) (150,557,727)

As the zakat base for the years 2011 and 2010 are negative, zakat is calculated based on adjusted net income for the
years ended 31 Decemnber, attributable to the ultimate Saudi shareholders as follows:

2011 2010
SR SR
Adjusted net income attributable to Saudi shareholders 49,832,964 36,622,442
Zakat @ 2.5% 1,245,824 915,561
Zakat under protest (see note (c) below) (149,691) 149,691
Net amount charged to retained earnings 1,096,133 1,065,252




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31 December 2011

14. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)

Movenent in provision

Balance as at | January

Provided during the year

Payment during the year

Refundable amount adjusted against Zakat payment

Balance as at 31 December

b) Income tax

Chasge for the year

2011 2010
SR SR
1,529,662 1,380,574
1,096,133 1,065,252
(915,561) (510,811)
- (405,353)
1,710,234 1,529,662

Income tax liability for the years 2011 and 2010 has been calculated based on adjusted net income for the year

ended 31 December as follows:

Adjusted net income attributable to Non-Saudi shareholders

Income tax payable @ 20%
Income tax under protest (see note (c) below)

Movement in provision

Balance as at | January

Provided during the year

Payment during the year

Refundable amount adjusted against Zakat payment

Balance as at 31 December

2011 2010
SR SR
25,393,866 18,594,349
5,078,773 3,718,869
623,822 611,429
5,702,595 4,330,298
2011 2010
SR SR
1,415,424 427,557
5,702,595 4,330,298
(4,663,154) (3,747,784)
- 405,353
2,454,865 1,415,424




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2011

14. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)
o Status of assessments

Zakat assessment for the period ended 31 December 2001 and for the years ended 31 December 2002, 31 December
2003 and 31 December 2004 have been assessed at SR 5.5 million in excess of the provision made in these financial
statements. This is principally due to the fact that the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (“DZIT”) has not
allowed a deduction from zakat base of the net investment in finance leases.

The Company has appealed against this treatment but its appeal was disallowed early in 2010 by the Preliminary
Appeal Committee. The Company has filed an appeal to the Higher Appeal Committee. There is a potential risk of
an additional claim of SR 83.5 million, if the same principle were to be applied for all subsequent periods up to 31
December 2011.

On the basis of expert opinion received, the Company considers it unlikely that the present position of DZIT will be
upheld throughout the appeal process, because the issue of deduction of net investment in leases has industry wide
implications not only for leasing companies but also for mortgage finance business and any other finance related
business where the main assets are receivables. The matter is now before the appropriate regulatory authorities for
discussion, as the present treatment by the DZIT is highly discriminatory for Saudi shareholders and detrimental to
the growth of financial intermediation in the Country with adverse consequence for Saudi economy.

Due to the uncertainties involved, the Company is unable to assess accurately the final ontcome of this matter and
has not provided for any potential additional liability in these financial statements. The Saudi shareholders have
issued written proportionate guarantees to the Company to reimburse it in full for the potential Zakat liability,
should it be payable.

Further, the Company has protested the disallowances of the provision for lease losses in the adjusted profits and
has filed an appeal against the same. For the year ended 31 December 2011, in order to avoid any penalty due to
late payments, the Company has in addition to the zakat and income tax liability indicated in the returns, provided
/paid income tax of SR 623,822 (2010: SR 611,429) and reversed excess provision for zakat of SR 149,691
provided in 2010. These payments / provisions have been made “under protest” on behalf of the shareholders.

15. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the
shareholders by 30 million shares.

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the comparative year has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the
effect of the capital increase.

16. COMMITTMENTS

2011 2010
SR SR
Finance lease contracts not yet executed 175,111,281 1 1_4,784,926
Operating lease commitments for office premises 462,500 2,291,998
Letter of credit 75,211,264 -
Bank guarantees issued on behalf of the Company 6,708,811 1,708,811

Increase in outstanding letter of credit is attributed to a new syndicated lease arrangement that the Company is in
the process of finalising as of the year end. The gross lease amount of the syndicated arrangement is expected to be
SR 75 million. Advances against letter of credit as disclosed in note 5 represents related bank charges, which will be
adjusted against the lease.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2011

17. SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component that is engaged in providing products or services (a business segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

The Company essentially monitors its business as a single business segiment and accordingly it is Management’s
opinion that segment reporting would not be relevant. The Company only operates in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

18.  CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain a strong capital base. Capital adequacy ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the
Company’s eligible capital with its balance sheet assets, commitments and notional amount of derivatives, if any, at
a weighted amount to reflect their relative risk.

31 Decemnber 2011 31 December 2010
Total eapital Tier I capital Total capital Tier I capital
ratio % ratio Y% ratio % ratio %
Capital adeguacy ratios 29.93% 28.68% 31.68% 30.43%

19, RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial Joss. The Company has established procedures to manage credit exposure including
evaluation of lessees’ credit worthiness, formal credit approvals, assigning credit limits, obtaining collateral such as
security deposits and personal guarantees. Individual lease contracts generally are for terms not exceeding forty-
eight months.

Concentrations of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be affected similarly by changes in cconomic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments
affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

The Company manages its credit risk exposure through diversification of leasing activities to ensure that there is no
undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or businesses.

The credit risks on gross amounts due in relation to the investment in finance leases is mitigated by the retention of
title on leased assets and security deposits.

For details of the composition of the investment in finance leases portfolio refer to note 4.

The Company follows a credit classification mechanism, primarily driven by days delinquency as a tool to inanage
the quality of credit risk of the lease portfolio. The Company presently maintains four grades which differentiate
between performing and non-performing portfolios and allocates provisions accordingly.

Special comunission rate risk

Special commission rate risk is the uncertainty of future earnings resulting from fluctuations in special commission
rates. The risk arises when there is a mismatch in the assets and labilities which are subject to special commission
rate adjustment within a specified period. The most important source of such rate risk is the Company’s borrowings,
and investment and leasing activities, where fluctuations in special commission rates, if any, are reflected in the
results of operations.
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19. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continned)

Special commission rate gap is a common measure of rate risk. A positive gap occurs when more assets than
liabilities are subject to rate changes during a prescribed period of time. A negative gap occurs when liabilities
exceed assets subject to rate changes during a prescribed period of time.

The effective special commission rate (effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used
in a present value calculation, results in the carrying amount of the instrument. The rate is a historical rate of a fixed
rate instrument carried at amortised cost and a current market rate for a floating rate instrument or an instrument
carried at fair value,

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in special commission rates, before the effect of any hedging,
relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligations with floating special commission rate amounting to
SR 359 million (2010: 223 million) having an overall effective commission rate of 3.33% (2010: 4.30%).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be
caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up
immediately,

The contractual inaturities of liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date and do not take account of the effective maturities as indicated by the
Company’s availability of liquid funds. Management monitors the maturity profile to ensure that adequate liquidity
is maintained. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s liabilitics based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Within 3 3to12 No fixed
mounths moiths I1to5years  maturity Total
31 December 2011 SR SR SR SR SR
Liabilities
Short term loans 100,469,628 - - - 100,469,628
Accounts payable 62,125,800 - - - 62,125,800
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 32,749,773 - - - 32,749,773
Long term loans 139,234,324 89,371,760 437,453,583 666,059,667
Employees’ terminal benefits - - - 5,332,046 5,332,046
334,579,525 89,371,760 437,453,583 5,332,046 866,736,914
31 December 2010
Liabilities
Short term loans - - - - -
Accounts payable 52,406,547 - - - 52,406,547
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 38,310,147 - - - 38,310,147
Long term loans 40,154,849 102,646,575 467,280,556 - 610,081,980
Employees’ terminal benefits - - - 4,132,418 4,132418
130,871,543 102,646,575 467,280,556 4,132,418 704,931,092

The Company has unutilised bank facilities of SR 250 million (2010: SR 474 million) as at balance sheet date to

meet liquidity requirements.
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19.  RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or

seftled.

Less than More than 2011 Less than More than 2010

12 months 12 months SR 12 months 12 months SR
Cash and cash equivalents 70,928,689 - 70,928,680 41,001,445 - 41,001,445
Net investment in finance
Jeases 606,878,380 552,231,414  1,159,109,794 577,201,944 368,360,362 945,562,306
Advances, prepayment and
other receivables 5,917,380 - 5,917,380 3,765,380 - 3,765,380
Fixed assets - 1,795,252 1,795,252 - 1,731,769 1,731,769
Total asscts 683,724,449 554,026,666  1,237,751,115 621,968,769 370,092,131 992,060,900
Short term loans and
current maturity of long
term loans 314,261,436 - 314,261,436 122,929,629 - 122,929,629
Accounts payable 62,125,800 - 62,125,800 52,406,547 - 52,406,547
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 32,749,773 - 32,749,773 38,310,147 - 38,310,147
Long term loans - 422,442,742 422,442,742 - 427,709,194 427,709,194
Employees’ terminal
benefits - 5,332,046 5,332,046 - 4,132,418 4,132,418
Fair value of derivatives - 77,490 77,490 - 287,450 287,450
Total liabilitics 409,137,009 427,852,278 836,989,287 213,646,323 432,129,062 645,775,385
Net 274,587,440 126,174,388 400,761,828 408,322,446  (62,036,931) 346,285,515

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of its activities, the Company transacts business with related parties which are related to its
shareholders. The Company is provided with technical assistance from ORIX Corporation, Japan and ORIX
Leasing Pakistan Limited at no cost under an arrangement. Other amounts relating to its shareholders and associates

included in the financial statements which have been transacted are as follows:

Balances:

Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Directors’ award payable

Transactions:
Rent and premises related expenses

Rent and premises related income on subletting to an affiliate
Special commission expenses on overdrafts and bank charges

2011
SR

496,800
1,350,000

1,880,000
1,167,348
64,928

2010
SR

462,500
1,350,000

1,897,500
1,167,348
504,045

1Q
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21. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Prior year figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation.

22. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL

The Board of Directors has proposed cash dividend of SR 0.75 per share (2010: SR 0.75 per share) for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and a bonus issue of 4,000,000 shares (2010: 5,000,000 shares) at nominal value of SR 10

each which are subject to the approval of shareholders.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on § Rabi Al Awal 1433H (corresponding to
31 January, 2012),

20
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SAUDI ORIX LEASING COMPANY

Scope of Audit

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Saudi ORIX Leasing Company, a
Closed Saudi Joint Stock Company ("the Company") as of 31 December 2010 and the
related statements of income, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the year
ended 31 December 2010. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management and have been prepared by them in accordance with the
provisions of Article 123 of the Regulations for Companies and submitted to us together
with all the information and explanations which we required. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
degree of assurance to enable us to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Unqualified Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements taken as a whole:

i) present fairly, in alt material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 31
December 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia.

iiy comply with the requirements of the Regulations for Companies and the Company's
by-laws in so far as they affect the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements.

for Ernst & Young
' 3

W=

'~ Fahad M. Al-Toaimi
Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 354

Riyadh: 27 Saffar 1432H
(31 January 2011)
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Net investment in finance leases

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Fixed assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS?’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Shott term loans and current maturity of long term loans
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other labilities

Long term loans

Employees’ terminal benefits

Fair value of derivatives

TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Share capital

Statutory reserve

Reserve for the issue of bonus shares
Retained earnings

Other reserve

Proposed dividend

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The attached notes 1 to 21 formn an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes

(= S 0, R = R 98]

o WO

12
12
21

11

2010 2009
SR SR
41,001,445 16,370,814
945,562,306 948,521,548
3,765,380 3,145,155
1,731,769 2,120,481
992,060,900 970,166,998
122,929,629 162,103,986
52,406,547 23,431,134
38,310,147 32,647,969
427,709,194 441,137,897
4,132,418 3,266,252
287,450 604,481
645,775,385 663,191,719
250,000,000 250,000,000
20,170,219 14,777,092
50,000,000 -
7,652,746 24,052,668
(287,450) (604,481)
18,750,000 18,750,000
346,285,515 306,975,279
992,060,900 970,166,998

2



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2010

INCOME
Lease finance income
Investment income

Total lease finance and investment income

Less:

Special commission expense including
amortisation of transaction cost

Net lease finance and investment incone
Add:
Other operating income

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and employee related expenses
Rent and premises related expenses, net
Depreciation

General and administrative expenses
Provision for lease losses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Weighted average number of issued and paid-up shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The attached notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notftes

15

2010
SR

118,200,998
3,688

118,204,686

25,059,280

93,145,406

1,329,829

94,475,235

26,709,293
1,258,509
691,628
2,839,739
9,044,796

40,543,965

53,931,270

25,000,000

2.16

2009
SR

115,401,665
15,236

115,416,901

32,704,942

82,711,959

1,935,564

84,647,523

25,305,933
842,765
726,085

2,888,805

11,997,329

41,760,917

42,886,606

25,000,000

1.72
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Cash flows fi'om operating activities:
Net income for the year

Adjustments to reconcile net income o net cash firom operating activities:

Amortisation of transaction cost
Depreciation

Provision for lease losses

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Net investment in finance leases
Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Employees’ terminal benefits

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from loans

Repayment of loans

Transaction cost paid

Income tax paid on behalf of non-Saudi shareholders
Zakat paid on behalf of Saudi shareholders
Dividends paid, net

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Supplemental disclosures
Special commission paid

Non-cash activity during the year
Zakat accrued on behalf of Saudi shareholders

Income tax accrued on behalf of non-Saudi shareholders

The attached notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2010 2009
SR SR
53,931,270 42,886,606
170,643 126,234
691,628 726,085
9,044,796 11,997,329
(7,200) (62,124)
63,831,137 55,674,130
(6,085,554) 136,806,990
(620,225) 650,557
28,975,413 (5,765,232)
4,525,223 7,531,002
866,166 901,405
91,492,160 195,798,852
(293,916) (534,640)
7,200 149,100
(286,716) (385,540)
150,000,000 264,797,284
(201,300,052) (485,107,057)
(973,651) .
(3,747,784) (6,326,154)
(510,811) (773,528)
(9,542,515) ;
(66,574,813) (227,409,455)
24,630,631 (31,996,143)
16,370,814 48,366,957
41,001,445 16,370,814
21,116,429 33,132,801
1,065,252 1,127,527
4,330,298 5,151,710




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Balance as at | lanvary 2009
Net income for the year
Transfer to statutory reserve
Net change in fair value

Issue of bonus shares (note 12)

Zakat accrued (note 14)
Income tax accrued (note 14)
Proposed dividend

Balance as at 31 December 2009

Net income for the year
Transfer to statutory reserve
Net change in fair value

Net dividends paid

Zakat accrued (note 14)
Zakat recovered

Income tax accrued (note 14)
Income tax recovered

Transfer to reserve for the issue of

bonus shares
Proposcd dividend

Balance as at 31 Decentber 2010

Analysis of retained earnings

Balance at | January 2009

Net income for the year, after transfer to the statutory reserve

Zakat/income tax provision

Proposed dividend

Balance as at 31 December 2009

Net income for the year, after transfer to the statutory reserve

Zakat/income tax recovered
Zakat/income tax provision
Transfer to reserve for the issue of bonus shares

Proposed dividend

Balance as at 31 December 2010

Reserve for
the issue of
Share Statutory bonus Retained Other Proposed
capital reserve shares earnings reserve dividend Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
200,000,000 10,488,431 50,000,000 10,483,960 - - 270,972,391
- - - 42,886,606 - - 42,886.606
- 4,288,661 - (4,288.661) - - -
. - . - (604,481) . (604,481)
50,000,000 - (50,000,000) - - - -
- - - (1,127,527) - - (1,127.527)
- - - (3,151,710) - - (5,151.710)
- - - (18,750,000) - 18,750,000 -
250,000,000 14,777,092 - 24,052,668 (604.481) 18,750,000 306,975,279
- - - 53,931,270 - - 33,931,270
- 5.393,127 - {5,393.127) - - -
- - - - 317,031 - 317.031
- - - - - (9.542,515)  (9,542,515)
- - - (1.065,252) - - (1.065,252)
- - - 1,692,747 - (1,692,747) -
- - - (4,330.298) - - (4.330,298)
- - - 7,514,738 - (7,514.738) -
- - 50,000,000  {50,000,000) - - -
- - - (18,750,000) - 18,750,000 -
250,000,000 20,170,219 50,000,000 7,652,746 (287,450) 18,750,000 346,285,515
Saudi Non-Sandi
shareholders shaveholders Total
7,669,222 2,814,738 10,483,960
25,199,698 13,398,247 38,597,945
(1,127,527) (5,151,710) (6,279,237)
(12,412,500) (6,337,500) (18,750,000)
19,328,893 4,723,775 24,052,668
32,132,251 16,405,892 48,538,143
1,692,747 7,514,738 9,207,485
(1,065,252) (4,330,298) (5,395,550)
(33,100,000) (16,900,000) (50,000,000)
(12,412,500) (6,337,500) (18,750,000)
6,576,139 1,076,607 7,652,746

The attached notes 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2010

1.

THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (the “Company™) is a closed joint stock company established under the
regulations for companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company operates under commercial
registration number 1010163957 issued in Riyadh on 2) Shawal 1421H (corresponding to 16 January
2001), and non-industrial license number 99 dated 27 Safar 1421H (corresponding to 31 May 2000) issued
by the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, through its three branches in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
The Company had 118 (2009: 120) employees as at 31 December 2010.

The Company's head office is located in Riyadh at the following address:

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
343, Al Ma’ather Street

Head Office

P.O. Box 22890, Riyadh 11416
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The objective of the Company is to provide lease financing for movable and immovable assets.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below:

Basis of presentation

These financial statements, expressed in Saudi Riyals are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting standards in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Generally accepted accounting standards in Saudi
Arabia comprise accounting standards issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants
(“SOCPA”). For matters where there is no guidance in the SOCPA accounting standards, the relevant
International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) is adopted.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the
measurement at fair value of derivative financial instruments,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financjal statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reported period. Although these estimnates are based on management's
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at banks including bank overdrafts and investments
with original maturity of less than three months from the contract date.

Net investiment in finance leases

Gross investment in finance leases include the total of future lease payments on finance leases (lease
receivables), plus estimated residual amounts receivable. The difference between the lease receivables and
the cost of the leased asset is recorded as unearned lease finance income and for presentation purposes, is
deducted from the gross investment in finance leases. The Company takes security deposits on leases with
the right to set off against the residual value of leased assets and for presentation purposes, these deposits
along with prepaid lease rentals are deducted from gross investment in finance leases.

Lease finance income is recognised over the term of the lease using the effective yield method.

Services fees charged in respect of processing and other services are recognised as income as the services
are rendered.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

INOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provision for lease losses

The Company reviews its lease reccivables on a monthly basis to assess wiiether specific provisions for
impairment should be recorded in the statement of income. In particular, considerable judgment by
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining
the level of provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assmnptions about several factors
involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, and actual results may differ resulting in future
changes to such provisions.

In addition to specific provisions against individually significant lease receivables, the Company also
makes a collective impairment provision against lease receivables which although not specifically
identified as requiring a specific provision have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. This
collective provision is based on any deterioration in the internal grade of the exposure since it was granted.
The amount of the provision is based on the historical loss pattern for lease receivables within each grade
and is adjusted to reflect ctrent economic changes.

Fixed assets )
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairmeat losses, if any. Depreciation is
provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Years
Leasehold improvements 10
Motor vehicles 3
Office furniture and fixtures 5
Information technology equipment 4

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the cairying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Expenditure for repair and maintenance are charged to income. Betterments that increase the value or
materially extend the life of the related assets are capitalised.

Short-term and long-term loans

These toans include special commission bearing borrowings which are recognised initiaily at cost, less
attributable transaction costs, if any. Subsequent to initial recognition, special commission bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value recognised
in the statement of income over the period of the borrowings on an effective special commission rate basis.

Iimpaivment and uncollectibility of assefs

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
specific financial asset may be impaired. 1f such evidence exists, an impairment Joss is recognised in the
income statement. Impairment is determined as follows:

(a) For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the mcone statement;

{b) For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present
value of future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset;

(©) For assets cairied at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and

the present value of future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company

(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuc_d)
31 December 2010

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employees’ terminal benefits

Employees’ terminal benefits are payable as a lump sum to all employees employed under the terms and
conditions of Saudi Labor and Workmen Law on termination of their employment contracts. The liability
is calculated as the current value of the vested benefits to which the employee is entitled, should the
employee leave at the balance sheet date. Termination payments are based on employees’ final salaries and
allowances and their cumulative years of service, as defined by the conditions stated in the laws of the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Derivative financial instruments and ledge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative

Any gains or losses arising from the changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the
statement of income, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in equity.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been and are expected to be highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were / are designated.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised,
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, for forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction
occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in
equity is transferred to statement of income for the period.

Zakat and income tax

The Company’s Saudi shareholders are subject to zakat and its non-Saudi shareholders are subject to
income tax in accordance with the regulations of the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (the “DZIT") as
applicable in the Kingdomn of Saudi Arabia. An estimate of zakat and income tax arising there from is
provided by a charge to retained earnings and all payments of zakat and income tax made on behalf of the
shareholders are deducted from the first available dividends.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
respective transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated to Saudi Arabian Riyals at the prevailing exchange rates. Gains and losses resulting from
changes in exchange rates are recognised as income or expense.
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31 December 2010

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Countinued)

Financial instrmneuts

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the
financial statements approximate their fair value. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective
evidence at the balance sheet date.

Offsctting

Finaucial assets and liabilities are offset and are reported net in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and when the Company intends to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the Hability simultaneously.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following:

2010 2009
SR SR
Cash at banks 40,986,508 16,362,843
Cash in hand 14,937 7,971
41,001,445 16,370,814
4. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES
2010 2009
SR SR
Lease receivables
- Performing 1,277,979,091 1,234,129,747
- Non-performing 9,446,031 18,286,895
Residual value 469,618,659 363,222,093
Gross investinent in finance leases 1,757,043,781 1,615,638,735
Non-refundable security deposits (468,815,602) (359,982,130)
Prepaid lease rentals (159,440,618) (141,915,585)
Unearned lease finance income (125,467,748) (116,506,761)
Net investment in finauce leases 1,003,319,813 997,234,259
Provision for lease losses (57,757,507) (48,712,711)
945,562,306 948,521,548

The maturity of the gross investment in finance leases (i.e. minimum lease payments (“MLPs™)) and net imvestment
in finance leases (i.e. present value of MLPs) is as follows:
2010 2009
SR SR
MLPs PV of MLPs MLPs PV of MLPs

Not later than one year 833,402,928 577,201,944 774,172,625 606,325,977
Later than one year but not later than five years 923,640,853 426,117,869 841,466,110 390,908,282

1,757,043,781 1,003,319,813 1,615,638,735 997,234,259




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cominucd)
3] December 2010

4. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES (Continued)
Economic sector risk concentrations for amounts due under net investment in finance leases are as follows:
Non-performing

Performing lease lease
contracts, net contracts, net

Investineut int
finance leases, net

Allowasnce for
lease losses

As at 31 December 2010

Construction & contracting 247,069,391 58,707 (58,707) 247,069,391
Services 258,372,502 829,434 (727,314) 258,474,622
Manufacturing 357,152,034 6,086,051 (5,697,617) 357,540,468
Trading 120,083,869 67,038 {67,038) 120,083,869
Others 13,256,273 344,514 (339.479) 13,261,308
Collective impairment provision - - (50,867,352) (50,867,352)
995,934,069 7,385,744 (57,751,507) 945,562,306
As at 31 December 2009
Construction & contracting 206,325,881 392.677 (287,858) 206,430,700
Services 282,840,392 666,65) {666,651) 282,840,392
Manufacturing 332,859,798 14,597,918 (6,386,436) 341,071,280
Trading 140,504,981 67,059 (67,059) 140,504,981
Others 18,716,273 262,629 (193,649) 18,785,253
Collective impainment provision - - (41,111,058) (41,111,058)
981,247,325 15,986,934 (48,712,711) 948,521,548
The movement in the provision for lease losses was as folows:
2010 2009
SR SR
Balance at the beginning of the year 48,712,711 36,715,382
Provision for the year 9,044,796 11,997,329
57,757,507 48,712,711
5. ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2010 2009
SR SR
Loans and advances to staf{f 1,673,404 1,582,199
Prepaid rent 793,875 758,919
Other receivables from lessees 723,052 203,586
Prepaid insurance 80,036 84,673
Prepaid visa cost 60,291 44,428
Receivable from suppliers and insurance companies - 87,689
Others 434,722 383,661
3,765,380 3,145,155




18¥°6T1°C

L197T8¢°¢

(oLLz8t)
$80°9ZL
80£°6£8°C

860°TIS’S

(162°697)
09 7<S
607°LYTS

IS
wioL
6002

69L'FELY

SYT'ovo'y

(000v<)
879°169
L19T8€'E

PIO‘TLL'S

000y
916°€6Z
860°ZIS‘s

AS
Y101
010¢

F6L'8SS

$9c°opS

LES'E66'I

979°86C
168'v69°1

106°6£5°T
91798
$89°¢STT

qs
quattdinbs
fi8ojouiag
uonuntiofu]

(000°v€)
$70°9Z1
vE6'EHT

051799

(000°t€)

051°969

IS
saponjan J0JON

6659y
08L°€LT

YO P6E

6L6°9L1
vOYLITI

€TY'899°t

091’y
€9TH99°1

qS
sa.oqxy puv

aumynenf a0ffo

TLS'1LY
£EY'S8S

L0191 €

6L6°68
8T1°9TC

0v$°106

ovs'e
000868
AS
squdutr00.1d 1)
plotasyay

6007 equiaaoqg {1V

0T0T 12quaR( I3V
:anpa 400q 39N
1804 Y3 Jo pua a1 e dourjeg

stesodsi(

J2ok ot 10} 931eYD

Jeak ayp jo SuruurSoq o 3e ddourjed
suonyadacy

189K 211 JO PUD Y1 18 Dourjeg
syesodsi(q
1204 3y3 BuLnp suonippy

1eak a3 Jo Sutuwidoq ays Je soueieg
13500

SLISSY GAXTA 9

010T 19qu203( [ €

(panunuod) SINFNALY.LS TYIONVNLI dHL OL SELON

(Auedwio)) 3201S IUIOf Paso[))
Kuedwo)) SuiseaT XTYO pnes



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company

(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2010

7. SHORT TERM LOANS

2010 2009
SR SR
Short term loans - 48,000,000
Current maturity of long term loans (note 10) 122,929,629 114,103,986
122,929,629 162,103,986

The Company has an overdraft facility of SR 40 million from a local bank, which has not been drawn down as of
the balance sheet date. The facility carries special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margin payable on
monthly basis. The facility is secured by assignment of lease contract recejvables.

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

These represent payables against purchase of assets leased by the Company.

9. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2010 2009
SR SR
Accrued special commission expense 13,077,138 9,134,287
Proposed lease related payables (a) 12,706,037 14,018,052
Zakat & income tax accrued on behalf of shareholders 2,945,086 1,808,131
Insurance premium payable 1,557,040 1,760,932
Insurance claims to be settled 1,059,538 577,204
Salaries and employee related expenses 4,550,145 3,768,776
Legal and professional charges 506,268 350,000
Others 1,908,895 1,230,587
38,310,147 32,647,969

a. These include advance security deposits, prepaid lease payments and front-end fees of lease contracts not
executed as at balance sheet date, and other payables for lessees.

10. LONG TERM LOANS

2010 2009
SR SR
Long term loans (a) 444,749,647 512,924,695
International Finance Corporation loan (b) 106,874,944 42,499,947
Less: unamortised transaction costs {985,768) (182,759)
550,638,823 555,241,883
Less: current maturity (note 7) (122,929,629) (114,103,986)

427,709,194 441,137,897




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company

(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2010

10. LONG TERM LOANS (Coniinued)

a. These long-term loans carry special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margins or fixed rates payable
on quarterly basis and semi-annual basis. These facilities are secured by the assigmnent of lease contract
receivables. Under the terms of the arrangements, the Company has to adhere to certain financial and non-
financial covenants.

b. The Company has facilities from International Finance Corporation (“IFC™), amounting to USD 37 million (SR
138.75 million). These loans are repayable over a period of 7 to 7.5 years from the date of first drawdown in
equal half yearly installments with a grace period of 24 months. These facilities carry fixed special commission
rates and are secured against assignment of lease contract receivables. Front end fee of SR 783,841 (2009: SR
182,759) has been netted off from the loan amount and is amortised over the term of loan on an effective yield
basis. ’

1L DERIVATIVES

As at 31 December 2010, the Company held Interest Rate Swaps (“IRS™) of a notional value of around SR 34
million (2009: SR 57 million), in order to reduce its exposure to interest rate risks against long term loans.

Fair value of cash flows hedge of SR 287,450 (2009: SR 604,481) represents the negative mark to market values of
the interest rate swaps as of 31 Decewnber 2010. The cash flow hedge reserve represents the effective portion of
cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedge is recognised in the statement of income when
the hedged transaction impacts the income or loss.

12. SHARE CAPITAL AND STATUTORY RESERVE

In 2009, the Company increased its paid up share capital to SR 250 million by issuing bonus shares amounting to
SR 50 million through the capitalisation of retained earnings. Further, the par value of a share has been split to SR
10 (2008: SR 50). The pattern of sharcholding as of 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Ownership Number Share capital

Shareholders percentage of shares (Amount in SR)
Saudi:
The Saudi Investiment Bank 37.995% 9,498,750 94,987,500
Trade Development & Investment Group Limited 32.000% 8,000,000 80,000,000
Mr. Musaed Bin Mohammad Bin AbdulAziz

Al Mineefi 0.005% 1,250 12,500
Non-Saudi:
ORIX Corporation — Japan 27.500% 6,875,000 68,750,000
ORIX Leasing Pakistan Limited — Pakistan 2.500% 625,000 6,250,000

25,000,000 250,000,000

As required by Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies, 10% of the net income for the year is transferred to a
statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such transfers when the reserve totals 50% of the
capital. The reserve is not available for distribution.




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company

(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 December 2010

13. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2010 2009
SR SR

License, legal and professional charges 1,170,182 1,280,342
Communication expenses 555,280 679,275
Office repair and maintenance cost 255,506 274,227
Printing and stationery 183,315 198,029
Travelling and transportation 123,817 92,891
Advertising and promotion expenses 218,587 85,177
Insurance of own assets 53,757 62,905
Others 279,295 215,959

2,839,739 2,888,805

14, ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
n) Znkat
Charge for the year

The zakat charge of SR 1,065,252 (2009: SR 1,127,527) for the year consists of the current year provision and is
based on the following:

2010 2009
SR SR

Shareholders’ equity at beginning 288,829,760 270,972,391
Opening provisions and adjustments 2,958,210 2,215,374
Borrowings, net 550,638,823 603,241,883
Book value of long term assets (2,746,059) (2,973,692)
Net investnient in finance leases (945,562,306) (948,521,548)

(105,881,572) (75,065,592)
Adjusted net incoine for the year 55,320,909 44,133,609

Zakat base (50,560,663) (30,931,983)

As the zakat base for the years 2010 and 2009 are negative, zakat is calculated based on adjusted net income for the
years ended 31 December, attributable to the ultimate Saudi shareholders as follows:

2010 2009
SR SR
Adjusted net income attributable to Saudi shareholders 36,622,442 28,813,806
Zakat @ 2.5% 915,561 720,345
Zakat under protest (sec note (c) below) 149,691 195,820
1,065,252 916,165

14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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14. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)

Movement in provision

2010 2009
SR SR

Balance as at 1 January 1,380,574 1,026,575
Provided during the year 1,065,252 916,165
Provided for 2008 under protest (see note (c) below) - 211,362
Payment during the year (510,811) (773,528)
Refundable amount adjusted against Zakat payment (405,353) -
Balance as at 31 December 1,529,662 1,380,574
b) Income tax
Charge for the year

Income tax liability for the years 2010 and 2009 has been calculated based on adjusted net income for the year
ended 31 December as follows:

2010 2009
SR SR
Adjusted net income attributable to Non-Saudi shareholders 18,594,349 15,267,918
Income tax payable @ 20% 3,718,869 3,053,584
Income tax under protest (see note (c) below) 611,429 832,910
4,330,298 3,886,494
Mowvement in provision
2010 2009
SR SR
Balance as at | January 427,557 1,602,001
Provided during the year 4,330,298 3,886,494
Provided for 2008 under protest - 1,265,216
Payment during the year (3,747,784) (6,326,154)
Refundable amount adjusted against Zakat payment 405,353 -
Balance as at 31 December 1,415,424 427,557
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14, ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)
c) Status of assessiuients

Zakat assessment for the period ended 31 December 2001 and for the years ended 31 December 2002, 31 December
2003 and 31 December 2004 have been assessed at SR 5.5 million in excess of the provision made in these financial
statements. This is principally due to the fact that the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (“DZIT™) has not
allowed a deduction from zakat base of the net investinent in finance leases.

The Company has appealed against this treatment but its appeal was disallowed early in 2010 by the Preliminary
Appeal Committee, The Company has filed an appeal to the Higher Appeal Conmnittee. There is a potentjal risk of
an additional claim of SR 65 million, if the same principle were to be applied for all subsequent periods up to 31
December 2010.

On the basis of expert opinion received, the Company considers it unlikely that the present position of DZIT will be
upheld throughout the appeal process, because the issue of deduction of net investinent in leases has industry wide
implications not ouly for leasing companies but also for mortgage finance business and any other finance related
business where the main assets are receivables. The matter is now before the appropriate regulatory authorities for
discussion, as the present treatment by the DZIT is highly discriminatory for Saudi shareholders and detrimental to
the growth of financial intermediation in the Country with adverse consequence for Saudi economy.

Due to the uncertainties involved, the Company is unable to assess accurately the final outcome of this matter and
has not provided for any potential additional hability in these financial statements. The Saudi shareholders have
issued written proportionate guarantees to the Company to reimburse it in full for the potential Zakat liability,
should it be payable.

Further, the Company has protested the disallowances of the provision for lease losses in the adjusted profits and
has filed an appeal against the same. For the year ended 31 December 2010, in order to avoid any penalty due to
late payments, the Company has in addition to the zakat and income tax liability indicated in the retums, effected
payments of income tax of SR 611,429 (2009: SR 832,910) and provided for zakat of SR 149,691 (2009: SR
195,820). These payments / provisions have been made “under protest” on behalf of the shareholders.

15. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted
average nuinber of issued and paid-up ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

16. COMMITTMENTS

2016 2009
SR SR
Finance lease contracts not yet executed 114,784,926 43,692,316
Operating lease commitments for office premises 2,291,998 4,162,498
Capital commitment for IT equipment - 13,250

17. SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component that is engaged in providing products or services (a business segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

The company essentially monitors its business as a single business segment and accordingly it is Management’s
opinion that segiment reporting would not be relevant. The Company only operates in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

16
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18. RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party 1o incur a financial loss. The Company has established procedures to manage credit exposure including
evaluation of lessees’ credit worthiness, formal credit approvals, assigning credit limits, obtaining collateral such as
security deposits and personal guarantees. Individual lease contracts generally are for terms not exceeding forty-
eight months.

Concentrations of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their abifity to meet
contractual obligations to be affected similarly by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments
affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

The Company manages its credit risk exposure through diversification of leasing activities to ensure that there is no
undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or businesses.

The credit risks on gross amounts due in relation to the investment in finance leases is mitigated by the retention of
title on leased assets and sccurity deposits.

For details of the composition of the investiment in finance leases portfolio refer to note 4.

The Company follows a credit classification meclanism, primarily driven by days delinquency as a tool to manage
the quality of credit risk of the lease portfolio. The Company presently maintains four grades which differentiate
between performing and non-perfonming portfolios and allocates provisions accordingly.

Special coimnission rate risk

Special commission rate risk is the uncertainty of future earnings resulting from fluctuations in special commission
rates. The risk arises when there is a mismatch in the assets and liabilities which are subject to special commission
rate adjustment within a specified period. The most important source of such rate risk is the Company’s borrowings,
and investment and leasing activities, where fluctuations in special commission rates, if any, are reflected in the
results of operations.

Special commission rate gap is a common measure of rate risk. A positive gap occurs when more assets than
liabilities are subject to rate changes during a prescribed period of time. A negative gap occurs when liabilities
exceed assets subject to rate changes during a prescribed period of time.

The effective special commission rate (effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used
in a present value calculation, results in the carrying amount of the instrument. The rate is a historical rate of a fixed
rate instrument carried at amortised cost and a cirent market rate for a floating rate instrument or an instrument
carried at fair value.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in special commission rates, before the effect of any hedging,
relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligations with floating special commission rate amounting to
SR 223 million (2009: 248 million) having an overall effective commission rate of 4.30% (2009: 4.67%).




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company

(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 Decenmber 2010

18. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be
caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up
immediately.

The contractual maturities of liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date and do not take account of the effective maturities as indicated by the
Company’s availability of liquid funds. Management monitors the maturity profile to ensure that adequate liquidity
is maintained. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Within 3 3to12 No fixed

31 December 2010 nionths tonths 1to5years  maturity Total
Liabilities

Short-term loans - - - - -
Accounts payable 52,406,547 - - - 52,406,547
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 38,310,147 - - - 38,310,147
Long-term loans 40,154,849 102,646,575 467,280,556 - 610,081,980
Employees’ end of service benefits - - - 4,132,418 4,132,418

130,871,543 102,646,575 467,280,556 4,132,418 704,931,092

31 December 2009

Liabilities

Short-term loans 48,179,975 - - - 48,179,975
Accounts payable 23,431,134 - - - 23,431,134
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 32,647,969 - - - 32,647,969
Long-term loans 36,832,912 98,835,725 484,110,629 - 619,779,266
Employees’ end of service benefits - - - 3,266,252 3,266,252

141,091,990 98,835,725 484,110,629 3,266,252 727,304,596

The Company has unutilized bank facilities of SR 474 million (2009: SR 540 million) as at balance sheet date to
meet liquidity requirements.
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18, RISK MANAGEMENT (Coutinued)

Liquidity risk (continned)

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or

settled.
Less than More than 2010 Less than More than 2009
12 wonths 12 months SR 12 months 12 months SR
Cash and cash equivalents 41,001,445 - 41,001,445 16,370,814 - 16,370,814
Net investment in finance
leases 577,201,944 368,360,362 945,562,306 606,325,977 342,195,571 948,521,548
Advances, prepayment and
other receivables 3,765,380 - 3,765,380 3,145,155 - 3,145,155
Fixed assets - 1,731,769 1,731,769 - 2,129,481 2,129,481
Total assets 621,968,769 370,092,131 992,060,900 625,841,946 344,325,052 970,166,998
Short term loans and
current maturity of long
term loans 122,929,629 - 122,929,629 162,103,986 - 162,103,986
Accounts payable 52,406,547 - 52,406,547 23,431,134 - 23,431,134
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 38,310,147 - 38,310,147 32,647,969 - 32,647,969
Long term loans - 427,709,194 427,709,194 - 441,137,897 441,137,897
Employees’ terminal
benefits - 4,132,418 4,132,418 - 3,266,252 3,266,252
Fair value of derivatives - 287,450 287,450 - 604,481 604,481
Total liabilities 213,646,323 432,129,062 645,775,385 218,183,089 445,008,630 663,191,719
Net 408,322,446 (62,036,931) 346,285,515 407,658,857 (100,683,578) 306,975,279

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of its activities, the Company transacts business with related parties which are related to its
shareholders. The Company is provided with technical assistance from ORIX Corporation, Japan and ORIX
Leasing Pakistan Limited at no cost under an arrangement. Other amounts relating to its shareholders and included

in the financial statements which have been transacted are as follows:

Balances:

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Short-term loan

Accrued special commission

Directors’ award payable

Transactions:

Rent and premises related expenses

Special commission expenses and amortised transaction costs
on short-term loan and long-term loan

2010
SR

462,500

1,350,000

1,897,500

504,045

2009
SR

475,997
38,000,000
456,000
1,125,000

1,890,994

2,116,420
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20. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Prior year figures have been reclassificd wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation,

21, BOARD OF DIRECTORS® APPROVAL

The Board of Directors has proposed cash dividend of SR. 0.75 per share (2009: SR 0.75 per share) for the year
ended 31 December 2010 and a bonus issue of 5,000,000 shares (2009: Nil) at nominal value of SR 10 each which

are subject to the approval of shareholders.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2011.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: The Shareholders
Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Saudi ORIX Leasing Company - a
Closed Joint Stock Company (“the Company™) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December
2009 and the related statements of income, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the
year then ended and the attached notes (1) through (22) which form an integral part of the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and in
compliance with Article 123 of the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s Articles of
Association. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. Management has
provided us with all the information and explanations that we require relating to our audit of these
financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Audit Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements taken as a whole:

1) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2009, and the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in
shareholders’ equity for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company; and

2) comply with the requirements of the Regulations for Companies and the Company’s

Articles of Association with respect to the preparation and presentation of financial
statements.

For KPMG Al Fozan & Al Sadhan

Tareq A. Al Sadhan
License No. 352

Date: 17 Safar 1431H
Corresponding to: 1 February 2010



BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2009
(Saudi Riyals)
Note
Asseté
Cash in hand and at banks 3
Net investment in finance leases 4
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 5
Fixed assets 6
Liabilities
Short-term loans 7
Accounts payable 8
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 9
Long-term loans 10
Employees’ end of service benefits
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 11
Statutory reserve 12
Reserve for the issue of bonus shares 11
Retained earnings
Proposed dividend 22

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)

2009 2008
16,370,814 48,366,957
948,521,548  1,097,325,867
3,145,155 3,795,712

. 2,129,481 2,407,901
970,166,998  1,151,896,437
162,103,986 329,244,907
23,431,134 29,196,366
32,647,969 25,937,413
441,137,897 494,180,513
3,266,252 2,364,847
662,587,238 880,924,046
250,000,000 200,000,000
14,777,092 10,488,431
- 50,000,000
24,052,668 10,483,960
18,750,000 -
307,579,760 270,972,391
970,166,998  1,151,896,437

The accompanying notes (1) through (22) form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Saudi Riyals)

Note 2009 2008
Income
Lease finance income 115401,665 117,461,656
Special commission income 15,236 21,691

115,416,901 117,483,347

Less:
Special commission expense and amortized
transaction costs 32,704,942 38,160,817
Net lease finance and special commission income 82,711,959 79,322,530
Add:
Other operating income 1,935,564 776,561
Total operating income 84,647,523 80,099,091
Less:
Operating expenses
Salaries and employee related expenses 25,305,933 23,147,333
Rent and premises related expenses 842,765 920,746
Depreciation 726,085 680,858
Other general and administrative expenses 13 2,888,805 2,591,988
Provision for lease losses 4.3 11,997,329 14,780,550
Total operating expenses 41,760,917 42,121,475
Net income for the year 42,886,606 37,977,616
Weighted average number of issued and paid-up shares 25,000,000 25,000,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share 16 1.72 1.52

The accompanying notes (1) through (22) form an integral part of these financial statements.



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Saudi Riyals)
Reserve for the
Share Statutory  issue of bonus Retained Proposed
Note Capital Reserve shares Earnings Dividend Total
Balance as at 1 January 2008 200,000,000 6,690,669 - 27,495,697 10,000,000 244,186,366
Net income for the year ' - - - 37,977,616 - 37,977,616
Transfer to statutory reserve - 3,797,762 - (3,797,762) - -
Zakat accrued 14 - - - (566,470) - (566,470)
Zakat recovered - - - 393,263 - 393,263
Income tax accrued 4 - - - (3,344,646) - (3,344,646)
Income tax recovered - - - 2,326,262 - 2,326,262
Dividend paid - - - - (10,000,000) (10,000,000)
Transfer to reserve for the issue of bonus
shares - - 50,000,000 (50,000,000) - -
Balance as at 31 December 2008 200,000,000 10,488,431 50,000,000 10,483,960 - - 270,972,391
Net income for the year - - - 42,886,606 - 42,886,606
Transfer to statutory reserve - 4.288,661 - (4,288,661) - -
Zakat accrued M4 - - - (1,127,527) - (1,127,527)
Income tax accrued M4 - - - (5,151,710) - (5,151,710)
Issue of bonus shares 50,000,000 - (50,000,000) - - -
Proposed dividend - - - (18,750,000) 18,750,000 -
Balance as at 31 December 2009 250,000,000 14,777,092 - 24,052,668 18,750,000 307,579,760
Analvsis of retained earnings
Saudi Non-Saudi
Shareholders Sharcholders Total
Balance as ot 1 January 2008 : 16,891,552 10,604,145 27,495,697
Zakat and income tax recovered from sharcholders’ dividend 393,263 2,326,262 2,719,525
Net income for 2008, after transfer to statutory reserve 19,550,877 14,628,977 34,179,854
Zakat and income tax provision (Note 14) (566,470) (3,344,646) (3,911,116)
Transfer to reserve for the issue of bonus shares (28,600,000) {21,400,000) (50,000,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2008 7,669,222 2,814,738 10,483,960
Net income for 2009, after transfer to statutory seserve 25,199,698 13,398,247 38,597,945
Zakat and income tax provision (Note 14) (1,127,527) (5,151,710) (6,279,237)
Proposed dividend (12,4)2,500) (6,337,500) (18,750,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2009 19.318!893 4,723,775 24,052,668

The accompanying notes (1) through (22) form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Saudi Riyals)

Note
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income for the year

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in
operating activities

Depreciation of fixed assets

Special commission expense and amortized
transaction costs

Provision for lease losses

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease / (increase) in net investment in finance leases
Decrease in advances, prepayments and other receivables
Decrease in accounts payable

Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities
Increase in employees’ end of service benefits

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Purchase of fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

(Repayments) / proceeds of / from loans

Special commission paid

Zakat paid on behalf of Saudi shareholders

Income tax paid on behalf of Non-Saudi shareholders
Net dividend paid

Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity
Zakat accrued on behalf of Saudi shareholders 14

Income tax accrued on behalf of Non- Saudi shareholders 14

2009 2008
42,886,606 37,977,616
726,085 680,858
32,704,942 38,160,817
11,997,329 14,780,550
(62,124) (7,567)
136,806,990 (212,274,815)
650,557 444,268
(5,765232)  (41,275,549)
8,085,093 1,834,971
901,405 834,479
228,931,651 (158,844,372)
149,099 © 24,000
(534,640)  (1,096,745)
(385,541)  (1,072,745)
(220,309,770) 243,911,349
(33,132,801)  (36,748,905)
(773,528) (393,263)
(6,326,154)  (4,070,960)
-  (7,280,475)
(260,542,253) _ 195417,746
| (31,996,143) 35,500,629
48,366,957 12,866,328
16370,814 __ 48,366,957
1,127,527 566,470
5151,710. 3,344,646

The accompanying notes (1) through (22) form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

THE COMPANY AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company (the “Company™) is a closed joint stock company established
under the regulations for companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The Company operates
under Commercial Registration No. 1010163957 issued in Riyadh on 21 Shawal, 1421H
(corresponding to 16 January 2001), and non-industrial license No. 99 dated 27 Safar 1421H
(corresponding to 31 May 2000) issued by the Ministry of Industry and Electricity, through its
three branches in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia employing 120 (2008: 130) employees as at 31
December 2009.

The Company’s head office is located in Riyadh at the following address:

Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
343, Al Ma’ather Street

Head Office

P.O. Box 22890, Riyadh 11416
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The objective of the Company is to provide all types of lease financing for movable and
immovable assets.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below:

Basis of presentation

The financial statements, expressed in Saudi Riyals, are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia i.e. Saudi Organization for
Certified Public Accounts (SOCPA).

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
using the accrual basis of accounting and the going concern assumption except for the
measurement of net investment in finance leases and borrowings at amortised cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at banks including bank overdrafts and
investments with original maturities of less than three months from the contract date.



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

¢

d

Net investment in finance leases

Gross investment in finance leases include the total of future lease payments on finance leases
(lease receivables), plus estimated residual amounts receivable. The difference between the lease
receivables and the cost of the leased asset is recorded as unearned lease finance income and for
presentation purposes, is deducted from the gross investment in finance leases. The Company takes
security deposits on leases with the right to set off against the residual value of leased assets and for
presentation purposes, these deposits along with prepaid lease rentals are deducted from gross
investment in finance leases.

Lease finance income is recognized over the term of the lease using the effective yield method. On
certain leases, the Company charges a non-refundable front-end fee which is recognized as income
when received.

Provision for lease lpsses

The Company reviews its problem lease receivables on a monthly basis to assess whether specific
provisions for impairment should be recorded in the statement of income. In particular,
considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows when determining the level of provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily
based on assumptions about several factors involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty,
and actual results may differ resulting in future changes to such provisions.

In addition to specific provisions against individually significant lease receivables, the Company
also makes a collective impairment provision against lease receivables which although not
specifically identified as requiring a specific provision have a greater risk of default than when
originally granted This collective provision is based on any deterioration in the internal grade of the
exposure since it was granted. The amount of the provision is based on the historical loss pattern for
lease receivables within each grade and is adjusted to reflect current economic changes.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Motor vehicles 5 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Office furniture and fixtures 5 years
Information technology equipment 4 years

Short-term and long-term loans

These loans include special commission bearing borrowings which are recognized initially at cost,
less attributable transaction costs, if any. Subsequent to initial recognition, special commission
bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption
value being recognized in the statement of income over the period of the borrowings on an effective
special commission rate basis.



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

b
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D

Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount which is higher of an
asset’s net selling price and value in use. For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest level generating separately identifiable cash flows.

Employees’ end of service benefits

Employees’ end of service benefits are payable as a lump sum to all employees employed under the
terms and conditions of Saudi Labor and Workmen Law on termination of their employment
contracts. The liability is calculated as the current value of the vested benefits to which the
employee is entitled, should the employee leave at the balance sheet date. Termination payments are
based on employees’ final salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service, as defined
by the conditions stated in the laws of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Zakat and income tax

The Company’s Saudi shareholders are subject to zakat and its non-Saudi shareholders are subject
to income tax in accordance with the regulations of the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (the
“DZIT”) as applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. An estimate of zakat and income tax arising
therefrom is provided by a charge to retained earnings and all payments of zakat and income tax
made on behalf of the shareholders are deducted from dividends.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the respective transactions. At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated to Saudi Arabian Riyals at the prevailing exchange rates. Gains and losses
resulting from changes in exchange rates are recognized as income or expense.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the
financial statements approximate their fair value. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective
evidence at balance sheet date.

Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and are reported net in the balance sheet when there is a

legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and when the Company intends to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Saudi Riyals)

3. CASHIN HAND AND AT BANKS

Cash in hand
Cash at banks

4. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASES

Lease receivables
- performing
- non-performing

Residual value

Gross investment in finance leases 4.1

Non-refundable security deposits
Prepaid lease rentals

Unearned lease finance income

Net investment in finance leases 4.1

Provision for lease losses - 4.3

2009

7,971
16,362,843

2008

17,180
48,349,777

16,370,814

48,366,957

009

—_—

1,234,129,747
18,286,895

363,222,093

2008

1,393,112,325
14,402,954

295,936,684

1,615,638,735
(359,982,130)
(141,915,585)
(116,506,761)

1,703,451,963
(292,344,503)
(136,364,166)
(140,702,045)

997,234,259
(48,712,711)

1,134,041,249
(36,715,382)

948,521,548

1,097,325,867

4.1 These lease receivables are assigned as security against the loans facilities. The maturity of the
gross investment in finance leases [Minimum Lease Payments (MLPs)] and net investment in

finance leases (Present value of MLPs) is as follows:

2009 2008
MLPs PVof MLPs MLPs PV of MLPs
Not later than one year 774,172,625 606,325,977 795,834,919 595,824,980
Later than one year but '
not later than five years 841,466,110 390,908,282 907,617,044 538,216,269
1,615,638,735 997,234,259 1,703,451,963  1,134,041,249




Saudi ORIX Leasing Company

(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Decemniber 2009

(Saudi Riyals)

4.2 Economic sector risk concentrations for amounts due under net investment in finance leases are

as follows:

As at 31 December 2009

Services — Construction &
contracting

Services — Miscellaneous
Manufacturing

Trading

Others

Collective impairment provision

As at 31 December 2008

Services — Construction &
contracting

Services — Miscellaneous
Manufacturing

Trading

Others

Collective impairment provision

Performing Non-performing

Allowance Investment in

4.3 The movement in the provision for lease losses was as follows:

5.

Balance at the beginning of the year

Provision for the year

ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Loans and advances to staff
Prepaid rent
Prepaid insurance

Receivable against Human Resource Fund

Prepaid visa cost

Receivable from suppliers and insurance companies

Others .

lease lease for lease finance
contracts, net contracts, net losses leases, net
206,325,881 392,677 (287,858) 206,430,700
282,840,392 666,651 (666,651) 282,840,392
332,859,798 14,597,918 (6,386,436) 341,071,280
140,504,981 67,059 (67,059) 140,504,981
18,716,273 262,629 (193,649) 18,785,253
-- - (41,111,058) (41,111,058)
981,247,325 15,986,934 (48,712,711) 948,521,548
225,163,053 108,208 (115,479) 225,155,782
313,931,933 703,428 (702,532) 313,932,829
449,253,069 7,364,123 (1,893,381) 454,723,811
117,698,492 2,678,970 (2,566,479) 117,810,983
16,758,621 381,352 (306,701) 16,833,272
-- - (31,130,810) (31,130,810)
1,122,805,168 11,236,081 (36,715,382) 1,097,325,867
2009 2008

36,715,382 21,934,832

11,997,329 14,780,550

48,712,711 36,715,382

2009 2008

1,582,199 1,136,228

758,919 850,230

84,673 121,137

- 696,812

44,428 121,659

87,689 347,101

587,247 522,545

3,145,155 3,795,712
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Saudi Riyals)
7. SHORT-TERM LOANS
Note 2009 2008
Short-term loans 7.1 48,000,000 154,991,820
Current maturity of long-term loans 10 114,103,986 174,253,087

" 162,103,986 329,244,907

7.1 These represent short-term loans drawn down against credit lines of SR 90 million (2008: SR 200
million) from local banks. The facilities carry special commission rate equal to Saudi Inter-bank
Offer Rate (“SIBOR”) plus bank margin and are repayable within 12 months from balance sheet date
(refer note 18 (c)). These facilities are secured by assignment of lease receivables.

7.2 The Company has overdraft facility of SR 40 million from a local bank. The facility carries special
commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margin payable on monthly basis. The facility is secured
by assignment of lease receivables.

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
These represent payables against supply of assets leased by the Company.
9. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Note 2009 2008
Accrued expenses
Salaries and employee related expenses 3,768,776 3,889,264
Accrued special commission 9,134,287 9,688,379
Legal and professional charges 350,000 - 162,199
Insurance 1,760,932 1,904,670
Other liabilities
Proposed lease related payables 9.1 14,018,052 5,783,195
Zakat & income tax accrued on behalf of
shareholders 14 1,808,131 2,628,576
Others 1,807,791 1,881,130

32,647,969 25,937,413

9.1 These include advance security deposits, prepaid rents and front-end fees of lease contracts not
executed as at balance sheet date, and other payables for lessees.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Saudi Riyals)

10. LONG-TERM LOANS

Note 2009 2008

Long-term loans 10.1 512,924,695 615,617,643
International Finance Corporation (IFC) loan 10.2 42,499,947 53,124,949
Less: Unamortized transaction costs (182,759) (308,992)
555,241,883 668,433,600

Less: Current maturity 7 (114,103,986) (174,253,087)
441,137,897 494,180,513

10.1 These long-term loans carry special commission rate equal to SIBOR plus bank margins payable
on quarterly basis and semi-annual basis. These facilities are secured by the assignment of lease
receivables. Under the terms of the arrangements the Company has to adhere to some financial and
non-financial covenants. These facilities represent the following:

Limit expiry 2008 2008
March 2009 - 50,000,000
May 2011 - 200,000,000
September 2011 -~ 100,000,000
October 2011 ~ 90,000,000
March 2012 400,000,000 -
April 2012 300,000,000 -
October 2012 90,000,000 -
3 years from the date of drawdown 200,000,000 182,000,000

' 990,000,000 622,000,000

10.2 The Company has obtained a loan from International Finance Corporation (IFC), amounting to
USD 17.0 million (SR 63.75 million). The loan is repayable over a period of 7.5 years in 12 equal
installments with a grace period of 24 months. The loan carries a fixed special commission rate
calculated using i) fixed rate swap against six month LIBOR on the day of disbursement; and ii)
IFC margin. The loan is secured against assignment of lease receivables.

Front end fee of SR 182,759 (2008: SR 289,432) has been netted off from the loan amount and is
being amortised over the term of loan using effective special commission rate.

12



Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Saudi Riyals)

11. SHARE CAPITAL

The company increased it’s paid up share capital to SR 250 million (2008: SR 200 million) by
issuing bonus shares amounting to SR 50 million through the capitalization of general reserve. The
par value of a share has been reduced to SR 10 (2008: SR 50). The revised total number of shares
25,000,000 has been used to compute the basic and diluted earnings per share retrospectively. The
pattern of shareholding is as follows:

Ownership Number of Share
Shareholders Percentage Shares Capital (SR)
Saudi:
The Saudi Investment Bank 37.995% 9,498,750 94,987,500
Trade Development & Investment Group Limited 32% 8,000,000 80,000,000
Mr. Musaed Bin Mohammad Bin AbdulAziz
Al Mineefi 0.005% 1,250 12,500
Non-Saudi:
ORIX Corporation, Japan 20% 5,000,000 50,000,000
ORIX Leasing Pakistan Limited 10% 2,500,000 25.000.000

— 25,000,000 _250,000,000
12. STATUTORY RESERVE

The Company’s Articles of Association and the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia require the Company to allocate 10% of its net income before zakat and income tax each year
to form a statutory reserve until such reserve equals one-half of its share capital. The statutory
reserve is not available for distribution.

13. OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2009 2008
Communication expenses 679,275 619,953
Office repair and maintenance cost 274,227 244,756
Insurance of own assets 62,905 44,154
Traveling and transportation 92,891 123,434
Printing and stationery 198,029 213,028
Advertising and promotion expenses 85,177 123,275
License, legal and professional charges 1,280,342 997,927
Other general expenses 215,959 225,461

2,388,805 2,591,988
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Saudi Riyals)

14. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
A. Zakat

The following are the significant components of the zakat base of the Company for the years ended
31 December:

2009 2008
Shareholders’ equity at beginning 270,972,391 234,186,366
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits at beginning 2,215,374 1,315,047
Adjusted net income for the year 44,133,609 39,312,286
Borrowings-net 603,241,383 823,425,420
Net fixed assets (2,973,692) (3,129,187)
Net investment in finance leases (948,521,548) (1,097,325,867)
Zakat base attributable to Saudi shareholders (127,226,373)  (235,771,452)

As the zakat base for the years 2009 and 2008 are negative, zakat is calculated based on adjusted
net income for the years ended 31 December as follows:

2009 008

Adjusted net income attributable to Sandi shareholders 28,813,806 22,486,628
Zakat @ 2.5% 720,345 562,166
Zakat under protest 195,820 -
Less: Under provided in the previous year - 4,304
916,165 566,470

Zakat is payable based on amounts attributable to the ultimate Saudi shareholders.

Provision for Zakat

The movement in the provision for zakat for the years ended 31 December is as follows:

2009 2008
Balance as at 1 January 1,026,575 853,368
Provided during the year 916,165 566,470
Provided for 2008 under protest 211,362 -
Payment made during the year (773,528) (393,263)
Balance as at 31 December 1,380,574 1,026,575

Zakat Assessments

Zakat assessment for the period ended 31 December 2001 and for the year ended 31 December
2002, 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2004 have been assessed at SR 5.5 million in excess of
the provision made in these financial statements. This is principally due to the fact that the
Department of Zakat and Income Tax (DZIT) has not allowed a deduction from Zakat assets for the
net investment in finance leases.
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Saudi ORIX Leasing Company
(A Closed Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Saudi Riyals)

The Company has appealed against this treatment but its appeal was disallowed subsequent to the
year end by the Preliminary Appeal Committee. The Company has filed an appeal to the Higher
Appeal Committee. There is a potential risk of an additional claim of SR 46.2 million, if the same
principle were to be applied for all subsequent periods up to 31 December 2009.

On the basis of expert opinion received the Company considers it unlikely that the present position
of DZIT will be upheld throughout the appeal process, because the issue of deduction of net
investment in leases has industry wide implications not only for leasing comnpanies but also for
mortgage finance business and any other finance related business where the main assets are
receivables. The matter is now before the appropriate regulatory authorities for disctssion, as the
present treatment by DZIT is highly discriminatory for the Saudi shareholders and detrimental to the
growth of financial intermediation in the Country with adverse consequence for Saudi economy.

Due to the uncertainties involved, the Company is unable to assess accurately the final outcome of
this matter and has not provided for any potential additional liability in these financial statements.
The Saudi shareholders have issued written proportionate guarantees to the Company to reimburse it
in full for the potential Zakat liability, should it be payable.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, in addition to the Zakat and Incomne Tax liability indicated in
the return, payments of income tax of SR 832,910 (2008 : SR 1,265,216) and Zakat of SR 195,820
(2008 : SR 211,362) have been made “under protest” on behalf of the shareholders.

B. Income Tax

Income tax liability for the years 2009 and 2008 has been calculated based on adjusted net income
for the year ended 31 December as follows:

2009 2008

Adjusted net income attributable to Non-Saudi shareholders 15,267,918 16,733,496

Income tax payable @ 20% 3,053,584 3,346,699
Income tax under protest 832,910

Less: Excess provided in the previous years - (2,053)

3,886,494 3,344,646

Provision for income tax

The movement in the provision for income tax for the years ended 31 December is as follows:

2009 2008
Balance as at 1 January 1,602,001 2,328,315
Provided during the year 3,886,494 3,344,646
Provided for 2008 under protest 1,265,216 --
Payment made during the year © (6,326,154) (4,070,960)
Balance as at 31 December 427,557 1,602,001
COMMITMENTS
, 2009 2008
Finance lease contracts not yet executed 43,692,316 7,311,180
Operating lease commitments for office premises 4,162,498 6,012,498
Capital commitment for IT equipment 13,250 -
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the
weighted average number of issued and paid-up ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2009 2008
Cash in hand 7,97 17,180
Cash at banks 16,362,843 48,349,777

16,370,814 48,366,957

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a) Credit risk

b

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company has established procedures to manage
credit exposure including evaluation of lessees’. credit worthiness, formal credit approvals, assigning
credit limits, obtaining collateral such as security deposits and personal guarantees. Individual lease
contracts generally are for terms not exceeding forty-eight months.

Concentrations of credit risk arises when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business
activities, or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be affected similarly by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location.

The Company manages its credit risk exposure through diversification of leasing activities to ensure
that there is no undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific
locations or businesses. The credit risks on gross amounts due in relation to the investment in finance
leases is mitigated by the retention of title on leased assets and security deposits. For details of the
composition of the investment in finance leases portfolio refer to Note 4.

The Company follows a credit classification mechanism as a tool to manage the quality of credit risk
of the lease portfolio. The Company presently maintains four grades which differentiate between
performing and non-performing portfolios and allocates provisions accordingly. The Company
grades the individual customer based both on subjective and time based criteria taking into
consideration factors such as a customer’s credit standing, financial strength, and security and quality
of management. The Company monitors customers’ grading on a regular basis.

Special commission rate risk

Special commission rate risk is the uncertainty of future earnings resulting from fluctuations in
special commission rates. The risk arises when there is a mismatch in the assets and liabilities which
are subject to special commission rate adjustment within a specified period. The most important
source of such rate risk is the Company’s borrowings, and investment and leasing activities, where
fluctuations in special commission rates, if any, are reflected in the results of operations.

Special commission rate gap is a common measure of rate risk. A positive gap occurs when more
assets than liabilities are subject to rate changes during a prescribed period of time. A negative gap
occurs when liabilities exceed assets subject to rate changes during a prescribed period of time.

The table below summarizes the Company’s exposure to special commission rate risks. Included in
the table are the Company’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates. The effective special commission rate (effective yield) of a
monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used in a present value calculation, results in the
carrying amount of the instrument. The rate is a historical rate of a fixed rate instrument carried at
amortized cost and a current market rate for a floating rate instrument or an instrument carried at fair
value.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Special commission rate risk (Continued)

Non Effective
Within 3 3to12 1to5 commission Comm.
31 December 2009 Months Months Years bearing Total Rate (%)
Assets
Cash in hand and at banks - - - 16,370,814 16,370,814
Net investment in finance leases 202,502,590 374,205,691 371,813,267 - 948,521,548 10.92
Advances, prepayments and
other receivable - - - 3,145,155 3,145,155
Fixed assets - - — 2,129,481 2,129,481
202,502,590 374,205,691 371,813,267 21,645,450 970,166,998
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Short-term loans 48,000,000 -- - - 48,000,000 343
Accounts payable - -- - 23431134 23,431,134
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities - - -~ 32,647,969 32,647,969
Long-term loans 230,935,372 83,150,699 241,155,812 - 555,241,883 4.58
Employees’ end of service
benefits - - - 3,266,252 3,266,252
Shareholders’ equity - - -- 307,579,760 307,579,760
278,935,372 83,150,699 241,155,812 366,925,115 970,166,998
On-balance sheet gap (76,432,782) 291,054,992 130,657,455 (345279,665)
Cumulative on-balance sheet
gap (76,432,782) 214,622,210 345,279,665
Non Effective
Within 3 3to12 1to5 commission Comm.
31 December 2008 Months Months Years bearing Total Rate (%)
Assets
Cash in hand and at banks -- - -~ 48,366,957 48,366,957
Net investment in financeleases 183,091,921 393,442,807 520,791,139 -- 1,097,325,867 10.55
Advances, prepayments and
other receivable -- - - 3,795,712 3,795,712
Fixed assets -- - - 2,407,901 2,407,901
183,091,921 393,442,807 520,791,139 54,570,570 1,151,896,437
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Short-term loans 134,993,205 19,998,615 - -- 154,991,820 544
Accounts payable -- -- ~ 29,196,366 29,196,366
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities - - - 25937413 25,937,413
Long-term loan 349,443,703 74,641,469 244,348,428 -- 668,433,600 5.28
Employees’ end of service
benefits - - - 2,364,847 2,364,847
Shareholders® equity - - - 270,972,391 270,972,391
484,436,908 94,640,084 244,348,428 328,471,017 1,151,896,437
On-balance sheet gap (301,344,987) 298,802,723 276,442,711 (273,900,447)
Cumulative on-balance sheet .
gap (301,344,987) (2,542,264) 273,900,447
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity
risk can be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of
funding to dry up immediately.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s assets, liabilities and shareholders’
equity. The contractual maturities of assets and liabilities have been determined on the basis of the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date and do not take account of the
effective maturities as indicated by the Company’s availability of liquid funds. Management monitors the
maturity profile to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.

The maturity profile of the assets, liabilities, and shareholders’ equity is as follows:

Within 3 3to12 1to5 No fixed
31 December 2009 Months Months Years maturity Total
Assets
Cash in hand and at banks 16,370,814 - - -- 16,370,814
Net investment in finance
leases 202,502,590 374,205,691 371,813,267 -- 948,521,548
Advances, prepayments and
other receivable 3,145,155 - - - 3,145,155
Fixed assets - -- - 2,129.481 2,129,481
222,018,559 374,205,691 371,813,267 2,129,481 970,166,998
Liabilities and Shareholders’ equity
Short-term loans 48,000,000 -- - - 48,000,000
Accounts payable 23,431,134 - - - 23,431,134
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 32,647,969 - - -- 32,647,969
Long-term loans 30,953,288 83,150,699 441,137,896 -- 555,241,883
Employees’ end of service
benefits - - -- 3,266,252 3,266,252
Shareholders’ equity - - - 307,579,760 307,579,760
135,032,391 83,150,699 441,137,896 310,846,012 970,166,998
Maturity gap 86,986,168* 291,054,992 (69,324,629) (308,716,531)
Cumulative maturity gap 86,986,168 378,041,160 308,716,531

* The company has unutilized bank facilities of SR 540 million as at 31 December 2009 to meet the

short-term liquidity requirements.
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FINANCTAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Ligquidity risk (Continued)

Within 3 3to12 1to5 No fixed
31 December 2008 Months Months Years maturity Total
Assets
Cash in hand and at banks 48,366,957 - - - 48,366,957
Net investment in finance leases 183,091,921 393,442,807 520,791,139 - 1,097,325,867
Advances, prepayments and
other receivable 3,795,712 - - -- 3,795,712
Fixed assets - - - 2407901 2,407,901

235,254,590 395,442,807 520,791,139 2,407,901 _ 1,151,896.,437

Liabilities and shareholders’

equity

Short-term loans 134,993,205 19,998,615 - - 154,991,820

Accounts payable 29,196,366 -- - - 29,196,366

Accrued expenses and other

liabilities 25,937,413 - - - 25,937,413

Long-term loans 73,886,620 100,366,467 494,180,513 - 668,433,600

Employees’ end of service

benefits - - -- 2,364,847 2,364,847
. Shareholders’ equity - — -- 270,972,391 270,972,391

264,013,604 120,365,082 494,180,513 273,337,238  1,151,896,437
Maturity gap (28,759,014)* 273,077,725 26,610,626 (270,929,337)
Cumulative maturity gap

(28,759,014) 244,318,711 270,929,337

* The company has unutilized bank facilities of SR 100 million as at 31 December 2008 to meet the
short-term liquidity requirements.

GEOGRAPHICAL CONCENTRATION

The Company operates and has all of its assets, liabilities, and commitments in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia except for a Long-term loan from International Finance Corporation repayable in United States of
America.

- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of its activities, the Company transacts business with related parties which are
related as its shareholders.

The Company is provided with technical assistance from ORIX Corporation, Japan and ORIX Leasing
Pakistan Limited at no cost under an arrangement.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Other amounts relating to its shareholders and included in the financial statements which have been
transacted under normal commercial terms are as follows:

2009 2008
Balance Sheet
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 475,997 467,491
Short-term loans 38,000,000 38,000,000
Accrued special commission 456,000 1,521,459
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 18,751
Directors’ award payable 1,125,000 1,125,000
Income Statement
Rent and premises related expenses 1,870,500 1,850,000
Special commission expenses and amortized transaction costs on
short-term loan and long-term loan 2,116,420 6,234,925

. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Prior year figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation.

. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL

The Board of Directors has proposed cash dividend of SR. 0.75 per share for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: Nil).

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 February 2010.
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